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REPORT

OF THE 3

JOINT COMMITTERE

APPOINTED TO INVESTIGATE THE AFFAIRS OF THE IOWA PENITENTIARY.

-

The Joint Committee appointed by the General Assembly, by
concurrent resolution, dated Feb. 21st, A. D. 1860, “to visit the
Towa Penitentiary, and report npon the condition of that Institu-
tion,” and to enguire whether, if it require one hundred and ninety
thousand dollars to finish the Penitentiary, it wozgd not be better to
expend the money at Des Moines in a new Penétentiary, &ec., &c.,
beg leave to ‘

REPORT:

Your Committee, in compliance with the requisitions of said
concurrent resolution, met at Fort Madison on Tuesday, the 28th
February, 1860, and proceeded to examine, personally, said Insti-
tution ; the laws passed at the various sessions of the General As-
sembly, (so far as they could be procured,) both Territorial and
State, from the foundation ot the Institution to the present date ;
the grounds, buildings, records, and history thereof; together with
the officers, and such other witnesses as the very briet period ullot-
ted them would allow ; the result of which is as tollows, to-wit:

ORIGIN OF THE INSTITUTION

By an act of the Territorial Legislature, approved January 25th,
1839, entitled ““ An act to provide for the erection ot a Penitentiary,

and establishing and regulating prison discipline for the same,” it
is provided—"
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at a Penitentiary, of sufficient capacity to re-
'“ SECT]ZI:ele.deLtilploy one hnndr)ed and thirty-six convicts, to
e ?ie:ed in separate cells at night, shall be erected ; a:xf] that
be'dcolr’]enitenti'a.ry shall be constructed on such a scale that, in the
S.aiimation of the Directors, it can be fully completed for a sum not
;::ceeding forty thousand dollars, exclusive of the labor of the con-
L » [
vatﬂ*.o 9 Provides for the election, by joint ballot of the Council
a.ndkH-ouse of Representatives, of three I?irectors, u'nder whose
direction said Penitentiary shoulq be built, ar.xd points o;13|; tl:ie
mode of their qualifications, the filling of vacancies in their Board,
&cé’n‘:cé Provides “ that the Directors ot thc. Penitent-iary, elected
and qualified as aforesaid, are hereby atfth.orlzed an.d ms.tructed to
locate and erect the said Penitentiary .thhu} one mile ot the Pub-
lic Square in the town of Fort Madison, in t.he county of Lee;
provided the citizens of said town of Fort Madison, and county of
Lee, shall, on or before the first day of May next, execute to the
Directors, for the Territory of Iowa, a proper deed of conveyance
for a tract of ten acres of land in fee simple, absolut_e; which land
shall, in the opinion of the Directors, include a suitable spot on
which to erect the said Penitentiary, and cause such deed to be
recorded in the Recorder’s office, in the county of Lee, and depos-
ited in the office of the Secretary of the Territory.”

Sko. 4 Provides for the appointment of a Superintendent of the
building by the Directors, his qualifications and dunties,—amongst
which, “he shall, under the direction, and subject to the control ot
the Directors, project the plan for the said Penitentiary, conform-
ing, as nearly as convenient, and as may appear advisable, to the
Oonnecticut State Prison at Wethersfield, and securing to the Ter-
ritory a Penitentiary of the most substantial materials and work-
manship.” : ; 2>

8ro. 5 Provides, “that for the crection of said Penitentiary, the

Governor is hereby authorized and required to draw the sum of 24

twenty thousand dollars, appropriated for the erection of publie
buildings in the Territory of lowa, by an act of Congress approved
July 7th, 1838, and pay the same over to the Superintendent, to

be nsed by him for the purchase of materials and pay of workm ~; 
and laborers necessary to erect said building: Provided, it shall
not intertere with the twenty thousand dollars appropriated by tﬁ:
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organic law, organizing the Territory ot Iowa; and the said
Directors are hereby authorized and empowered to cause to be
employed, in the erection of the Penitentiary, all such persons as
now are, or may hereatter be convicted of any infamous crime in
this Territory, and sentenced to hard labor, or as many thereof as,
in the opinion of said Directors, can be employed with advantage
and safety to the Territory.”

Sec. 13 Provides that *the whole amount of twenty thousand
dollars appropriated in the fifth section of this act, may be expend-
ed, in the first instance, if necessary, in the erection of the cells
and enclosure of the Penitentiary; but if, at any time hereafter,
the Congress ot the United States shall make a sufficient specific
appropriation for the establishment of a Penitentiary within this
Territory, the said twenty thousand dollars shall be refunded from
such specific appropriation, and expended in the erection of other
public buildings within the Territory ot Iowa.”

Thus we have the origin of the Penitentiary system in [owa.

ITS HISTORY.

Whether Congress did make a specific appropriation, as appears
to have been anticipated, your Committee is not fully advised, (for
they had not access to the acts of Congress,) but the opinion of
some of the oldest and most intelligent gentlemen with whom your
Committee consulted, is, that there were appropriations ; and we
are advised especially of one of fourteen thousand seven hundred
and twenty-one dollars, to pay Messrs. Wells & Wilson, contractors.

We have, therefore, ascertained that, while the founders of the
institution contemplated ample provision for the accommodation,
safe keeping, and labor of one hundred and thirty-six convicts, at
an expense of forty thousand dollars, exelusive of convict labor,
the National and State Governments have expended one hundred
and five thousand seven hundred and nineteen dollars and twenty-
one cents; and there are but one hundred and eight cells erected,
in a prison house of two stories in height, built of stone, and cov-
ered with shingles, (the roof of which now leaks,) two hundred feet
by forty-four, but poorly ventilated, only temporarily warmed ;
and the Warden compelled to occupy a portion of it as a residence
while it forms the southern wall of the prison yard, as tar as they
have any protection on the south side, save a plank fence ; and a
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plank fence is, also, the only fence on t}'le north and ontpsjgt‘of’ the
east sides; while on the west, and residue of the east side, very
vecently, there have been stone walls el.-ected, abo.nt the substan-
tiality ot which there is some contradictory testimony. '.I‘hese
walls, such as they are, when completed, as contemplated, will en-
close, as we are informed, an area of about three hundrt?d and fifty
feet square, within which is erected one two-story brick 28x2'00
teet ; one two-story brick 40x105 feet, (each.wnl} cellars,) which
are used as workshops by the lessees; and \thch, in fact, are abont
the only buildings within the prison yard of any apparent substan-
tiality ; and, it is alleged that the roof ot ?he 1.1rst narped of these
is in @ leaky condition, although covered with tin; w'lnle the latter
is a new building, substantially built, and covered mt!x s}ate. 'I:he
residue of the yard is ocenpied (except, perhaps, the building w.hxch
encloses the steaming apparatus, which is very small, and built of
brick,) by woeod, lumber, saw-logs, chips, slmmnqs, afnd'temporary
wooden buildings, all of which endanger the institution hourly.
True, there is one one story building, 30x90 feet, recently ercfcted
for a kitchen, dining-room, and hospital, which looks more like a
house than the others, but it is a wood building, and your Com-
mittee are decidedly of opinion that no such building should ever
be allowed inside a prison yard; and no satistactory excuse, it is
believed, can be given for its construetion. i
Besides the amount of appropriations heretofore stated, the con-
viet labor (which has been for a few ot the past years quite an item)
was intended by the founders of the institution to be devoted to its
up-building and security ; and yet, we find now an actual outstand-
ing indebtedness of about forty-five thousand dollars!  Fortyfive
thousand dollars! with one hundred and thirty-two convicts, while
there are but one hundred and eight cells for them to lodge in at
uight, and but little security for them by day, unless it be found
in the strength of the guard employed. »
Let us retrospect ior a moment, and enquire into some of the
reasons for this state of things; and standing out in bold relief,
may be seen by the most casual observer, the almost total disregard
of the requirements of law, and the very general (not to say univer-
sal) absence of the necessary qualifications of officers connected
with its administration ; and this we feel called upon to say, with-
out intending to arraign any person before the bar of public senti-
ment, for wilful dishonesty or official corruption. Facts, however,
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must be stated, in order that the proper remedy may be.apphe.d,
and, as a beacon light for the guidance of the administration of its
affairs in the fature, although those facts may appear to bear hard
upon individuals. The interest of the State is paramonnt..

Although the law locating the institution required the Directors,
as a condition precedent, to procure “from the citizens of Fort
Madison, and Lee county, a proper deed of conveyance for a tract
ot ten acres of land, in fee simple, absolute; which land shall, in
the opinion ot the Directors, include a suitable spot on which to
erect the said Penitentiary ;” yet, your Committee find on record
of that date, a deed for only seven and seventy-six hundredths
acres, located on the point of a hill scarcely wide enongh on which
to locate the first building ; with deep ravines on the east and west
sides, especially the former; and rising abruptly north, so that to
make the yard with an inclination from north to south, of six feet,
(and it is believed more nearly level than necessary,) the officers
have, on the north, excavated until, if present plans are consum-
mated, they will leave a bank forty-three feet in height; while on
the south and east they will have filled some thirty feet; and the
whole grounds surrounded with deep ravines, high hills, and ab-
rupt precipices east, north and west; once studded over with dense
forests, but now mostly bare. Such is the unpropitious location ot
the Iowa Penitentiary.

Excepting some three or four old books trom the entries in which
nothing can be gleaned of substantial information, there were no
records kept of the transactions of the officers, from the toundation
of the Institution until the year 1851; no account ot receipts and
disbursements, nor anything from which a financial history of the
institution may be derived; and’your Committee have been com-
pelled to consultthe acts of the General Assembly, both Territorial
and State, (none of which was found among the archives of the
Institution) in order to ascertain what amount had been appropri-
ated, and our statement perhaps, now, is a mere approximation to
the truth, 4

During the Administration of Richard Quinton, as Warden,
trom the 1st of February 1851, to the 1st of February 1858, as ap-
pears by the testimony of the present clerk, the records “appear
to have been kept accurately ;” and yet, after Mr. Quinton left,
some how or other, your Committee have not stopped to enquire,
he was found to be a defanlter. “From the last named date unt i)
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the 1st day ot May 1857,” says the witness, the books are in such
eonfusion as to render it impracticable to make any correct st.al:,e-
ment from them. Since May 1857, it is claimed that a correct his-
tory has been deduced not, however, from the records, so mu.ch_ as
from the results of the investigation made by the Commission
appointed by the Governor under the. act of the Gfmeral Assem-
bly, approved March 23d, 1858, but with all due def'erenc'e to that
Commission, we may be allowed to say, that there is a discrepan-
¢y between the amount credited by them to the State, as cash
“balances May 1st, 1857;” and the amount furnished your Com-
mittee by the Anditor of State, for the same date, ot $4,330 05 ;
and we submit therefore, whether a degree of caution would net
be advieable in making their investigations the basis of calculation ;
although it is claimed by the Clerk of the Commission that they
derive their figures also from the Auditor of State.

Such appears to be the condition of the archives ot the Institu
tion; noris this picture, dark as it is, relieved by a more spe-
cific and critical examination into the conduect of'its officers. True,
in the earlier part of its history there were but few convicts, and it
perhaps might be urged that the interests were so small and simple
that men of business qualifications could not be induced to attend
to them ; but vast sums of money were appropriated, the foundation
of an Institution with which the welfare of society and the honer
of the State were indissolubly connected, were incentives which
¢hould have prompted the selection of the very best business tal-
ent, in whose hands those vast interests might have been placed
without the fear of negligence, or malfeasance.

And yet we find in examining into the affairs of the Penitentia-
ry from its earliest organization, that it does appear that many ot
the managers have been wholly incompetent to fill the important
stations they occupied.

Bat to particularize. On the 20th day of J uly 1858, the Inspec-
tors and Warden leased to Messrs. Winterbotham and Headley,
(now Winterbotham & Jones) the convict labor of the Penitentiary
for ten years from the 1st day of the following June, binding the
State to feed, clothe, bed, guard and warm the conviets, and fur-
nish sufficient shop room for carrying on the business of manufac-
turing “wagons, buggies, harness, saddle trees, mechanical and ag-
ricultural implements, and for working convicts to advantage, and
room for steam engine boilers, and for raw materials suflicient for

manutacturing purposes,” and in fact every thing .to the hanc! of
the lessees, and the lessees only to pay for the first year thl‘rty
cents per day, ver hand, and this for only suchas were able bodied
men, and tor the other nine years at the rate of thirty five cents,
(when it is now estimated to cost the State to l::eep them an aver-
age of-about forty cents per diem) and no security whatever given
that the lessees will perform their part of the contract ; and even
now the officers and lessees are in litigation about their respective
rights under that most unfavorable agreement, called @ 0¢-mtraf,'t-—
a more one sided one than which it would be difficult to imagine:
and while the lessees have all the advantage as they will not deny,
yet from some reason best known to themselves they now refuse
to work more than from seventy-five to eighty-five hands, and re-
fuse to pay for any convict labor.

It is not for your Committee to decide who is at faunlt in this (to
the State,) most unfortunate litigation; but one thing is certain,
that the State is losing thousands of dollars every year; and it is
believed by some that said lessees have forfeited their contract ;
and, but for a proposition to compromise—which proposition in-
cludes the idea of a surrender upon fair and equitable terms—your
Committee could not too strongly urge upon the consideration of
the General Assembly the question of resuming the convict labor,
and appropriating it to some beneficial purposes for the State.

Again: The Inspectors on the 27th day ot May, 1857, entered
into a contract for the purpose of excavation, embankment, and
building the outer wall ot the prison yard at, (in the opinion of
your Committee, ruinous prices) upon specifications and condi-
tions, which reqnire the wall to be completed upon the 1st day of
July, 1858, and for which sixteen thousand dollars was to be paid
upon estimates made monthly as the work progressed, and the bal-
ance whenever the Legislature should make an appropriation
therefor. And yet, after the bids had been received upom the
foregoing proposition, the Inspectors introduced a provision into

the contract by which the contractors could elect to stop the work

after the expenditure of the sixteen thousand dollars, thereby leay-
ing the prison yard unenclosed, and the expenditure of so large a
sum of money without accomplishing any practical end thereby.
It is contended by some of the witnesses, that by thus requiring the
expenditure of thirty or forty thousand dollars by the time speci-
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fied in the proposition upon which b.ids were to b_e receive'd, and
only sixteen thousand dollars to be paid thereon unt.xl the Legmlatur_e
should make appropriations to pay t‘he bals.mce, induced competi-
tors to present exorbitant estimates for which they would d'o the
work. After receiving bids upon this basis, the I‘nspectore intro-
duce a provision giving the contractors the privilege t? Efu-spend
the work by which the State suffered a loss without receiving any
immediate benefit therefrom.

By others, it is affirmed that it was well understood that the
work was to progress only as payment was made therefor.

The Inspectors, after having waited trom the 1st of July, 1.858,
down to a period just before the meeting ot the present Legisla-
ture authorized the contractors to go on with the excavation of
the yard, agreeing to pay the contractors with contract notes,
bearing twelve per cent per annum interest, assigning as a reason,
that the walls eould be erected more speedily after an appropri-
ation.

We disapprove of this act of the Inspectors, as being contrary
to law, and urge that it should not be sanctioned by the Legisla-
ture. While upon this subject, it may be well to state a fact
which tells with most serious consequences upon the coffers of the
treasury,—and that is, owing to the unevenness ot the location,
and the mistaken idea that the Prison yard must, of necessity, be
nearly level. The Inspectors have had something over three
thousand perch of stone put into the foundation of the east and

west walls, below the walls proper ; some of it as much as twenty-

five to thirty feet below the surface of the yard, and there is
now buried under the earth in the foundation of these two wa'ls
alone, agreeably to the estimate of John F. Edwards, the archi-
tect and engineer, nine thonsand nine hundred and forty eight
dollars and twenty-five cents, .
But this is not all. A portion of the foundation of the octa-
gonal structure, (so much eulogized by the Inspectors in their late
annual report,) and which however fine for some locations, and
practicable under favorable circumstances, is believed by your
Commiittee to be on an unnecessarily expensive plan, for the loca-
tion; and that in their opinion, it was commenced without author-
%ty of law, and prosecuted without a contract; a portion of which
18, as your Committee are informed by the Engineer, twenty-ﬁv‘e
feet under ground, and this foundation costs the State, as shown
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by the Inspector’s report, (page 21) five thousand two hundred and
fty-four dollars and cents.

ﬂf'lgh}:s it will be seenﬁ{gxt while the interests of the. State de-
mand eells, Clerk’s office, kitchen, dining-room, hespital, work-
shops, and almost every other appliance usual to a .well regulated
reformatory institution, and while necessity has driven the Gov-
ernor to stretches ot power in providing means for general sup-
port, and the institution is groaning under the burthen ot a con-
tinually increasing pecuniary embarrassment,—fifteen th.ousﬁnd
two hundred and four dollars and forty-five cents are buried be-
yond the hope of resurrection, or utility. And here your Com-
mittee would beg leave to say that they cannot too strongly con-
demn the frequent practice of the commencement of great enter-
prises without authority of law, and their projectors repairing to
the Legislative Halls, and with piteous moans operating upon the
sympathies of the representatives of the people, and the result is
a bankrupt treasury unless its failing energies are recuperated by
heavy loans. All such enterprises, from whatever source they
come, should be diseountenanced, and no officer allowed to con-
tract a single dollar of indebtedness to rest upon the State, unless
especially authorized so to do by law.

Your Committee would recommend the abandonment of the
octagonal building, and that it be prosecuted no farther unless au-
thorized by future legislation, and this will render an Architect
and Engineer unnecessary.

Not only was this octagonal building commenced without an-
thority of law, but the visit of one ot the Inspectors to the east,
at heavy expense to the State for per diem traveling expenses, et
cetera, together with the employment of an Engineer and Archi-
tect, away in a distant State—the bringing of him to Iowa—al-
lowing him pay for his services in that double capacity—the hold-
ing of one hundred and twenty-three meetings of the Board of
I[nspectors in the short space of six months, or thereabouts—the
charge of mileage for every visit—the superintendence of the
building of the wall under pay, and, at the same time having a
deputy without authority of law—the sending one of their num-
ber as a lobby to the Capitol to obtain appropriations at the last
session of the General Assembly, and at the present—the sending
Mr. Edwards for the same purpose, and the paying of these gen.
tlemen five dollars per diem and traveling expenses, we are com-
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pelled to comdemn as without leg:al authority and injurious to the
interests of the Institution and of the State.

Your Committee would further say that they .have lea.med,
with regret, that a great amount of dis_cor('l has, at different t:fnee,
existed between the officers of the institution ; and that consxder-
able friction is evident in ke movement of its machinery ; and, it
is somewhat singular that several successive Wardens s.hould have
heen charged by the Inspectors with defaleations, while .the ac-
counts of the Warden are at all times open to the inspection and
eriticism of the Inspectors; and this is the more unaccountable,
it what is intimated by the Commissioners appointed by the Gov-
ernor be true, and from the testimony of some of the witnesses,
we are inclined to think it is true, that the Inspectors have been
in the habit of assuming over the Warden powers not conferred
upon them by law. One instance we may be allowed to mention.
The late Warden, P. Inskeep, is now reported a defaulter for over
$9,000, while it is in evidence before us that the Inspec-
tors assumed the entire control of said Warden, and the funds of
the Institution during a good portion of his official time, and at
the expiration thereof settled with and paid him quite a large
gum, as is shown by the records of the prison.

One other item of history, and your Committee will close thie
branch of their report.

On the 8th day of May, 1858, the Inspectors, for the purpose of
enlarging their prison yard, purchased from G. W. Elsroad, a strip
of land on the east side of the prisor, of about two acres, through
which a street runs, and which street was, by order ot the ecity
touncil, vacated, upon condition that the State would furnish a
street farther east. It is believed that the vacation of said street
will have to be sanctioned by legislation before the State can have
a good title, and as the east wall of the prison is lecated so as to
include said street, it becomes a matter of no mean consideration,
to have the title thereto quieted, and confirmed to the State. It
may be well to remark that this outlay of seven hundred dollars
for said strip of land was, as was thought by the Inspectors, neces-
sary, in order tojthe enlargement of the prison yard, while the
State owned more ground on the west side of the west wall, and
much better land for the purpose than that which was purchased ;
but the west wall was located, in the opinion of the Committee,
improperly, and on account of this error, the State had to foot the bill.

13
THE FUTURE.

>

In view of all the foregoing facts, some grievous questions pre-
sent themselves for the consideration of your Committee, and of
the State, the first of which is contemplated by the concurrent
resolution by which we were appointed, to wit :-—-Thi.lt if the .In~
stitntion requires a very large outlay ot funds, would it be advisa-
ble to expend them in the erection of another Penitentiary at the
seat of government ?

The wisdom of the policy ot concentrating the fands and influ
encé ot the State, in the upbuilding of the Capitol City, by the
loeation and erection ot all reformatory, charitable, and benevo-
lent institutions which are under the fostering care of the State,
we presume will not be doubted, and the people will, doubtless,
always regret that 7kat policy was not adopted at an early period
in the history ot the State. But when large sums have already
been expended, (whether wisely or unwisely,) large interests con-
centrated, much improvement already made, and consequently
much money to be sacrificed in case of removal, considerations of
an unusual character, perhaps would alone justify a removal, es-
pecially when the monetary concerns ot the country are in a de-
pressed condition, and the people already overburdened with tax-
ation. Apply these principles to the case before us and your
Committee would hardly feel warranted in recommending the re-
moval of the Penitentiary from Fort Madison to Des Moiunes, (if
at all) at present ; especially when it may be safely anticipated
that at a future day, the interests of the State will demand more
than one such institution. ' ¥

Your Committee are therefore ot the opinion that from the pres-
ent condition and advancement of the improvements of the Peni-
tentiary, it is the best policy of the State to make such farther im-
provements from time to time, as will answer the present and pros-
]»e?tive demands of the State until the increase of convicts shall re-
(quire the en.largement of the present yard, which in the opinion of
your Committee should never be done, beyond the present plan, -

If your Committee were to suggest what was really necessary to
make the Towa Penitentiary what it ought to be, and what it prob-
ably will have to be in future, in that location, we might be per-
mitted to say, that the extension of the present building to the east
wall, and the raising of the whole so far as to admit of five tiers of
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cclls, would about give room enough for the safe keepmhg of s
four hundred and fifty conviets, and 'that is about t elgum er
which the contemplated prision yard will acc?mmodate.. . 0?' we
have not the estimate of the cost o.t the extension and raising o t'hmi
building, but certain it is that t}}ls would b.e tar more econnmlwa.
than that recommended by the inspectors in their late annual re-

ort. Then there is the cost of three hundred and fifty-two cells

at $100 each d ............................ 831;,383 %
ineindebtedness. ... ..occveeiee s g
Outstanding in pon

Completion of the outer wall. ... ......oonovevnns
Oﬂicsrs salaries including guards for 2 years..... .. 25,000 00

General SUpPOrt tWo Years. ... ....c.ooviieeoer s 35,000 00

$159,200 00

And all this without touching the question of more shop room,
about which there is litigation now, or cells for female convx?ts,
Olerk’s office for the safety ot the records, an.d many other im-
provements that are needed, and might be mentioned.

What shall be done now # 1t is difficult for your Oommit.tee to
answer this question; and we have therefore thought it advif;ahle
to submit some of the more prominent facts, and leave the solution of
the problem to the wisdom ot the General Assembly.

1st. There is an actual outstanding indebtedness now of about,

forty-five thousand dollars, (and that continually increasing, ) for
the payment of which if legal and just, the honor of the State ot
course is pledged.

But as a portion of that is alleged to have been contracted with-
out authority of law, your Committee would submit whether it
would not be prudent before the payment of said sum, to appoint
a Commission to investigate the justice and legality of said indebt-
edness, and how much has been paid out without authority, and
whether the same cannot be recovered back by suit, and to take
the necessary steps therefor, conferring upon said Commission the
power to send for persons and papers.

2d. We have now, one hundred and thirty-two convicts, who
may be expected to increase within the next two years to prob-
ably two hundred ; but one hundred and eight cells in which to
confine them. These cells are estimated by the Engineer to cost
$160 each ; the present lessee intormed your Committee thatthey
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thought they might with convict labor and brick partitions be built
for $100. Taking then the lowest estimate as our guide, and loca-
ting them on the top of those already builr, allowing one tier to be
indispensably necessary, we have five thousand four hundred dol-
lars.

Although the security of the convicts calls loudly for the com-
pletion of the outer walls for the prison yard—yet when we take
into consideration the condition of our Treasury, coupled with the
estimated cost of completion, §20,000 00, vour Committee submit
whether it wounld not be best to increase the strength of the pres.
ent force at a small outlay, and await the good fortune of the fu-
tare for ability to accomplish that which really appears necessary.

If the above suggestion should meet the approbation of the Gen-
eral Assembly, this will cost say, say one thousand dollars.

4th. The duties of Clerk and Deputy Warden have so far in-
creased, that to secure competent men it will probably be necessa-
ry to raise their salaries; and then for Warden, Deputy Warden,
Clerk, &c., say for officers salaries, five thousand dollars.

5th. For general support, as estimated by the Inspectors thrty-
five thousand dollars.

6th. Salaries of guards fifteen thousand dollars.

7Tth. A safe tfor Records, three hundred dollars.

Pruning down these to the lowest figures at all practicable at
present, taking into consideration the tact that the former mal-ad-
ministration of the affairs of the institution, requires great caution
in the appropriations in future, and indeed has, to a great extent,
created the present necessity therefor, your Committee would pre-
sent, by way of recapitulation, some of the items for which appro-
priations appear indispensable, to-wit : '

‘ RECAPITULATION.

1st. For outstanding indebtedness, or so much thercof as may be

found just and legal. . cwess S50 asimananoaissen $45,000 00
2d. By fonr Delie:is) . 0% 15 S0 P e v i v d it 455 it 5,400 00
3d. General support for two years from Sept., 1859... 35,000 00
4th. Officers and Guards salaries, two years......... 20,000 00
Sth. Bopaining teRoe: . iar c88 4 chs oveasreeitansonss. 1,000 00
Oth, Sale 10r TRR0PMR: . <8y iliic st e sioosn onesls st 300 00

106,700 00
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Again : The administration of the affairs of the institution being
so unsatisfactory, would seem to require legislation, and your'Oow
mittee would recommend that the office of Inspector be abolished,

and that the entire government of the Penitentiary develve upon

a Warden, who shall be elected by joint ballot of the General
Assembly, and who shall be responsible for everything connected
with the internal affairs of the institution, subject to the supervi-
sion of the Governor, and confiding to the executive the power of
removal for cause, requiring him to give his reasons therefor to the
next General Assembly. The Governor should also have the power
of filling vacancies in the Warden’s office. The Clerk and Dep-
uty should, under heavy penalties, be required to discharge their
respective duties faithfully, and the Warden should have the power
of appointment and removal of these officers, as also the Guards,
and a limited discretion should be allowed the Warden as to num-
ber, he being under heavy penalties responsible for the faithful
administration of the general disciplinary regulations ot the prison.
Your Committee cannot close this report without acknowledging
the courtesey of all the officers of the Penitentiary, the contractors
and lessees, and the citizens generally, all of whom appeared anx-
ious to aid us in our investigations, and the present Clerk and
Warden were especially accommodating, and we must bear testi-
-mony to the universal approbation with which the Warden’s official
conduet is mentioned. The condition of the prison, the general
health of the prisoners, the substantiality and wholesomeness of
their food, and the general sanitary regulations of the prison, bear
testimony to the qualifications of the Warden and his Deputy.
The moral training of the convicts is now under the special care
of the Rev. Mr. Thomas, a minister of the Methodist Episcopal
Society, who manifests great. interest in, and concern for, their
* spiritual welfare, and who suggests that a regular prison Chaplain
should be provided tor; and doubtless his suggestion is well based.
All of which is respectfully submitted.
: SR 1. C. CURTIS, Chairman.
NATHAN UDELL,
JESSE BOWEN,
M. W. ROBINSON,
D. D. SABIN,

Commdssioners.

fimnenh ) d4 st 1o poinlon
1INy ©F
! i gi | 1 48
, EXHIBIT “AY e oF. anui
Lo Turspay, Feb. 21, 1860.
“Message trom the House by Mr. Hammer, assistant clerk.
‘Mg. Presmest—I am directed to inform the Senate that the
House has passed the following concurrent resolution in which
the concurrence of the Senate is asked : - 7 ;
Resolved, The Senate concurring, that there be a Committee of
five appointed (three on the part of the House and two on the part
of the Senate) to visit the Iowa Penitentiary and report upon the
condition of that institution, and that the said Committee have the
same power to send for persons and papers as the Special Com-
mittee on the Insane Hospital; and that the said Committee be
instructed to enquire whether, it it require $190,000 to finish the
Penitentiary, it woulc not be better to expend the money at Dee
Moines on a new Penitentiary, and report the same to this House.
The House has appointed Messrs. Curtis, Sabin aud McCullough
of Jackson, as such Committee on the part of the House.
" J. A, HAMMER,
‘ - Assistant Clerk.
The question being on coneurring in the above resolution, Me
Drummond demanded the yeas and nays, which were as follows:
% * . * * * - - * L L g
Yeas 33—Nays 3.
So the resolution was concurred in,
The President appointed on said Committee, Messrs. Bowen and
Udell, as said Committee on the part of the Senate.
1 hereby certify that the above is a correct transcript from the
journals of the Senate.
J. H. SANDERS,
: Sec'y of Senate.
Senate Chamber, Des Moines, } '
February 23d, 1860.

3

/
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Commrrree Roowm, Carrror Burnpixe, }
Des Moines, Iowa, Tuesday, Feb. 21st, A. D. 1860.

At a meeting of the Joint Committee appointed by concurrent %
resolution of the Eighth General Assembly of the State of lIowa, 9.
“to visit the Iowa Penitentiary, and report upon the condition of
that institation,” held in Committee Room, at the Capitol, at Des
Moines, Iowa, on Tuesday, 21st day of February, A. D. 1860, the

following proceedings were had, to-wit: o
I. C. Curtis, member of the Hounse of Representatives, from ‘
Marion county, was elected Chairman, and Wm. Gray, of Shelby
county, lowa, was elected Secretary of said Committee. :
On motion, Committee then adjourned to meet at Fort Madison,
in Lee county, at 2 o’clock, P. M., ot Tuesday, Feb. 28th, 1860.
By order of Committee. ’
WM. GRAY, Sec’y.

EXHIBIT—*“B.”

RerresentaTives' Harr. ',
Des Moines, Iowa, Saturday, Feb. 25th, 1860.

Mr. McCullough, of Jackson, asked to be excused from serving
on the Select Committee on the Penitentiary. He was excused.

The Chair then appointed Mr. Robinson, ot Des Moines coun-
t¥y to fill his place on said committee.

o

CHAS. ALDRICH,
Chief Clerk.

—

Fort Madison, Lee county, Io
Tudsday, February 28th, 1860, 2 P. M. }

A quorum of the Joint Committee, appointed by concurrent res-
olution of the Eighth General Assembly of the State of Iowa;
“to visit the lowa Penitentiary, and. veport upon the condition of

that Institution,” not being present, at the time and place above

\

stated, an adjournment of the members, then and there present;

took place, until seven o'clock to-morrow, Wednesday evening.

WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.

Fort Madison, Iowa, : .’ '
’ Wednesday, February 29th, 1860, 7 P. M. [ .

The Joint Committee, appointed by concurrent resolution of the
Eighth General Assembly ot the State of Iowa, “to visit the lowa
Penitentiary, and report upon the condition of that Institution,”
met at the “ McFarland House,” at Fort Madison, Iowa, and in
pursuance of the adjournment ot those of them present at 2 o’clock
P. M., yesterday.

The Committee was called to order by I. C. Cartis, Chairman.

Present, -

JESSE BOWEN, of Johnson oonnty,}
NATHAN UDELL, of Appanoose co.

M. W. ROBINSON, of Des Moines co. }

On the :
of the Ben{:

On the part of

I. C. CURTIS, “ Marion “ {'the H. of R.

D. D. SABIN, “ Howard "

Mr. Bowen, of Johnsou county, proposed a plan upon whichthe
committee should commenece and prosecute their labors; which,
after having been discussed by all the members; the committee’
adjourned to meet again at 8 o’clock to-morrow morning.

WILLIAM GRAY,

Secretary.

Fort Madison, Lee county, lowa, ‘_
Thursday, March 1, 1860, 8 o’clock A. M. |

Committee met pursnant to adjournment.

All the members present.

L. C. Cartis in the Chair.

The tollowing eommunication of Hon. J: W. QOattell, Auditor of'



i i f the Committee, was
State, addressed to Mr. Curtis, as Chairman o '
nbm;tted and ordered to be placed on file. (See following pages.)

Hon. 1. C. CURTIS —

Dear Sir:-—As requested by you, Ie:a;;
iated to and receiv
ted a statement ot amounts appropriate
:ltt:?’le)nitentiary, and which is as follows; though probably not
exactly and definitely correct, yet it may be ot some use tol you.
The appropriations so far as I have found them, run as follows,
eommencing at 1847 : —

1847, Page 147,80C.2, ... ccquuereen... <eeo. ... $10,000,00
“ % 149, Res. anthorizing pay’t. of indefinite sumé s o&{
1849, © 83,sec6, 10,000200\
1851 O D R0 A TR Ly #e ilnle's s oot ¢5's o« bin e B J
Das wev qiggigua it 101 dng ool hanliin ' - 1,000,00
“ e W LT 8 s srliae = ot e cdinie ) o
; ... 6,606,34
L S T ertcs « c « e v e avesonsssas 1 00'
1855, Res. 1, am’t. indefinite am’t. drawn, .......... £ 042’45
Y WM. 3, "« e o cacososasansnaoncnssps 6,340‘00
“ NN, 8001, ohap. 100~ v . o i sansniin 5,900,00
1856, Extra Session, page 90, ...................... % 23,00
“ b % Res. 4 (indefinite) am’t. drawn, .. 000,00
1857, Page 80, ....... i i iladiiii el 20,892,19
« o dae. ..., pohaM 2 g STEAUE ) 2,892,
ORI i, . et PPEWAM Ty SRR ... 42,300,00
Tl;e books in the office show paid to the institution as follows : ;
From Feb. 25th, 1847, to Dec. 2d, 185?, e e $ 456, .
Under joint resolution 20 act 1851, in liquidation of .
Billaysivac o sevaeii-od daalaia 2 34 Aaye 0o . 1,139,438
U G I B W. .. ..ccov v vnencimenssons 895,77
S, & s iR d N e s 5 v 5o o w b 10,000,00
T o R TETET L S S S 6,606,29
From Jan, 1855, to Oct. 31, 1857, under appropriations, 40,377,58
“  Qct. 31, 1855, to Nov. 23, 1859, “ 49,300,00

The above appears to be exclusive of sums paid as salaries, &e.,
of officers of the institution. T
x Yours truly,

J. W. CATTELL."

On motion of Mr. Bowen, it was . .

Llesolved, That the Committee proceed torthwtth to .the Towa
Penitentiary, and there make a careful personal inspection ot the

Prison Grounds, the Prison, the Work Shop, the Outer Walls ot
the Prison, and all else connected therewith,

On motion of Mr. Sabin, the committce then adjourned in pur-
suance of the foregoing req?np ation, and to meet again at the room
fn the *McClelland House," at 2 o'clock this afternoon. ?”1 "
g . WILLIAM GRAY,

T . Y 7
il ‘2’ 2

ST (3 g

Fort Madison, Lee county, Iowa,
Thursday, March Tst, 1860, 2 P. M.

Committee met pursnant to adjournment.

All the members present.

I. C. Curtis in the Chair.

After much consultation, on the part of the committee, on dis-
coveries made at the Penitentiary, during their visit at the instita-
tion in the forenoon; and after the perfecting of plans for future
investigations, the committeeo adjourned to meet again, in Commit-
tee Room, at 7} o’clock this evening.

WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.

Fort Madison, Iowa,
Thursday, March 1, 1860, § past 7, P. M.

Committee met pursnant to adjournment.
Mr. Cartis in the Chair.

The Committee spent the usual time consumed in session, in
eonference upon the mode of proceeding in the investigations be-

fore them. On motion, Committee adjourned to meet again at 8
o’clock to-morrow morning,

WM. GRAY, Sec'y.
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: ey |
Forr Manison, Iav
Friday, March 2, 1860, 8 A. M. 2
LBk
Oommittee met pursuant to adjournment. s o
Mr. Cartis in the Chair.
On motion, ‘Mr. Phineas Inskeep (who was before the Commit-
tee,) was permitted to introduce the following statement of mnﬁ
pe;tmnmg to the office of Warden of the Iowa Penitentiary w

he held that office. (See appended statement.)

¥
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In 1857, thmgh the almost unanimous nwmmndd‘oh of the
members ot both branches of the Legislature of Iowa, I was ap-
pointed Warden of the Towa Penitentiary, and assumed the duties
of office on the first of May. On the first of the following October,
after having been in office but five months, the law made it ineum-
bent on me to report to the Legisiature then about to convene, an
official statement of the financial affairs of the prison, and other
matters pertaining thereto. Since then, baving held the office ot
Warden for nincteen (19) months;, and many things having trans.
pired of vast importance to the State, I consider it a duty T owe to
the Committee and myself, to report the management of the prlwn
and its funds during that time.

During the Session of 1857-8, there was appropriated MN
use of the prison $42,300 00, to be applied as follows: -

§9,000 00 for cells. -

10,000 00 for General SBupport. ANIE

4,000 00 for paying pust indebtedness borrowed ﬂ‘m 'ﬂl ap-
propriation of 1856-7.
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12,000 00 for completion of Wall.
6,000 00 for Hospital.

1,300 00 for paying past indebtedness,
At the Session of 1856-7, I had the honor of being a member of
the General Assembly, and one of the Committee, with Dr. Davis,
of Polk, J. H. Sullivan, of Lee, J. H. Noble, of Delaware, and
David Doud, of Van Bureo, on Public Baildings. Before any ac-
tion was taken by that Committee, or any appropriation recom-
mended, there was laid hefore them and strongly recommended by
Dr. Shedd, one of the Inspectors, a plan drawn up by James D.
Harper, Esq., for the general improvement of the prison, This
plan only contemplated an expenditure of about $85,000 to make
the Iowa Penitentiary a first class institution of the kind. Tt
seemed so economical, and was so strongly recommended by Dr.
Shedd and other gentlemen from Fort Madison, that the Commit-
tee concluded to adopt it, and recommend a liberal appropriation
for the commencement of the work, and that one of the Inspectors
should be superintendent of the improvements they had suggested.
The recommendations of the Committece were accepted with some
slight alterations, and became a law. During the spring of 1857
the Inspectors advertised for proposals for building the wall agree-
ably to the plan adopted by the Legislature, and appointed Dr.
Shedd Superintendent. Among the many proposals for the con-
tract, the one made by Megsrs. McHenry & Dinsmorc was deemed
the most favorable, and the work was allotted to them. During
the summer and fall, and while the improvements were in progress
under the supervision of Dr. Shedd, the utmost harmony prevailed
among the officers of the prison, from the least to the greatest,
order and good discipline were maintained, and through the assist
ance of my efficient Deputy, Mr. Griffin, 1 congratulated myselt
on having redeemed the Jowa Penitentiary irom the ridicule and
contempt in which it was held. by both citizen and convict. The
only caunse ot difference known to me between the Inspectors and
myself, or any other officers, previous to the meeting of the last
Legislature, was the objection I raised to the payment to Dr. Shedd
of $2 50 per day and of mileage of $3 00 per day to and from Den-
mark, while acting as Superintendent, and at the same time em-
ploying and paying a substitute for the same services; also, for
claiming and drawing from the prison funds, pay for services and

mileage while acting as a Lobby to the Legislature of 1857-8.

- These slight differences becoming known, and eoupled with the
desire to save expense, induced the Legislatare of 1857 and '58
in naking a second appropriation, to appoint the Warden Super-
intendent of the further contemplated improvements, thereby
saving great expense to the State. The passage ot this law begot
a spirit of hostility towards me, which soon made itself evident
in petty annoyances and acts tending to deprive me of all anthor-
ity and making me a mere tool in their hands. Their meetings
which were unusnally numerous, were changed from the prison
where the law plainly says they shall be held, to Messrs, Dorr &
Babeoek’s oftices ; the financial aftairs of the prison taken out of
my hands, orders given to the bankers not to honor my checks,
no bills for sapplies or necessaries allowed, unless it met with
their approval, and the annexed order (marked A.) entered on the
record, among many others, will show their usurpation ot author.
ity, and the course they took to prevent me from acting as Super-
intendent of the Improvements as contemplated by the law ma
king the appropriation, : ,

It was through these acts of the Inspectors in thus assuming
my duties as Warden, Treasurer, and Superintendent, that the
books of, the institution. became confused, and I am represented
as a defaulter, when I never audited or paid an account except by
their order, then as they required, rendered to thcm a monthly
statement of such payments, and in our final settlement they paid
me what they claimed was a balance due of $653 71. 1 will leave
it to any member of your Honorable Committee it I shounld be
held responsible for the acts of the Inspectors over which 1 had
no control, acd be made to suffer tor their usurpation of power
which has already cost me not a little trouble. _

For a long time previous to the last session of the Legislature,
Dr. Shedd had conceived the idea of going east to examine and
visit the penal Institutions of various States, and with that inten.
tion he applied to Gov. Grimes to recommend  in_ his message an
appropriation for that purpose, The Governor refused, and not-
withstanding the Warden was made Superintendent in the next
appropriation and no appropriation made for that purpose, he ap-
plied to Gov. Lowe for authority to earry out his long contem
plated visit. He was again disappointed, and then the Board of
Inspectors assumed to themselves the authority of drawing money
from th: Prison funds and under the pretense of procuring new
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plans, paid Doctor Shedd five dollars ‘per day and expenses,
amounting to $325 and $250 for a plan, with which Dr. Shedd re-
turned to Iowa, and which was adopted by the Inspectors, and
which, if carried out, will entail an expenditure of over $150,000
on the State, besides rendering it necessary to remove shops and
buildings which have cost the State many thousand dollars; during
this trip east, Dr. Shedd engaged the services of one John F. Ed-
wards, said to be a relative, and he was immediately appointed
Engineer and Architect, with a salary of $45 per month in the
former, and 85 per day in the latter capacity ; thus drawing from
the Prison funds between five and six hundred dollars for ninety
day’s services, as I believe, without color of law.

The appropriation of 1857 and ’58 contemplated the erection of
a Hospital to cost $6,000, and to be used for that purpose until
the wants of the Prison required additional shop room wherein to
work the conviets.

Previous to Dr. Shedd’s visit east, I called the attention ot the
Inspectors to the wants of the contractors, and the necessity of
providing more room or the State would be liable for damages
sustained by the lessees.

The vast increase of convicts during the winter and spring of
1858, from 47 to nearly 100, made it evident to me that the State,
in accordanee with their contract, should immediately provide
more shop room wherein to work the men, the present shops only
having capacity to work about 40 men to advantage.

I suggested to the Inspectors, both before and atter Dr. Shedd’s
trip east, the policy of using the $6,000 appropriated tor a Hospi-
tal in erecting a building that would answer the double purpose
of a Hospital and shops, dividing it so as to answer for both. T
counld not induce the Inspectors to act on my suggestion, and they
set Messrs. McHenry and Dinsmore at work on the foundation of
a building that is estimated by their man Edwards at $50,000, in-
dependent of the foundation.

This foundation was commenced and the balance of the appn)»
priation, after paying the expenses and services of Dr. Shedd east,
and Edwards, as Superintendent of the work, was expended, and
the monéy paid to McHenry & Dinsmore without a contraety
specification, or any writing on file to show what work was to be
done. If such contract or specification ever existed, it never came

to my knowledge, and I could gain no information of the Inspee.
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tors, although I was the lawful Superintendent of the work and
frequently called their attention to the fact. When Mr. Edwards
made the first estimate on the work of the foundation, and the In-
spectors gave McHenry & Dinsmore an order for the payment of
the same, I, as Treasurer of the institution, refused to pay the or-
der, believing the Inspectors had no right, under the law making
the appropriation, to expend the money appropriated in laying the
foundition of so expensive a building, and that without specifica-
tion or contract on file in the office ot the Penitentiary, and with-
out giving the Superintendent any knowledge or information con-
cerning the proposed building. For refusing to pay this estimate,
the Board convened for the purpose, as they said, of removing me
from my office of Warden unless I paid their order. After con-
sultation with friends, and an examination of the law, I concluded,
with great reluctance, to pay the estimate and let them assnme
the responsibility rather than sacrifice my place, which, owing to
my poverty, was my only dependence and support. The lessees,
as was anticipated, called the attention of the Warden and Inspec-
tors to the necessity of more shop room, (see record January 12,

marked B.,) long before the foundation of the Hospital was com-
menced, and frequently after, but could get no satisfaction from
the Inspectors. They at last offered to erect additional shops at
their cwn expense and take their pay from the idle men unem-
ployed for the want of room. This proposition was also rejected
by the inspectors by reason of a difference bBetween themselves
and the contractors, which difference was doubtless occasioned in
consequence of one of the contractors forwarding to Gov. Lowe,
statements of money drawn from the Prison tunds by Dr. Shedd ;
and this together with the friendly feeling they exhibited towards
me has caused them a series of annoyances and persecutions that
I consider disreputable to the Inspectors, and likely to be expen.
sive ; evidences of this can be found in the recorded proceedings
ot their meetings in an order annulling a certain contract for build-
ing cells, preventing them from haunling stone and materials into
the Prison Yard for that purpose, and at last commencing & suit,
after vainly trying to get out an attachment to ruin them in their
business. I am satisfied had no ill feeling existed towards the
lessees, the Inspectors would certainly have accepted their propo-
sition to furnish means and erect shops, and buildings, and take
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their pay in the labor of the unemployed conviets who were and
bave been idle for want of shop room, had that course been taken
all dificulty in regard to shop room and unemployed conviets,
would have been avoided, and there would have been no nccessity
as there now is for calling on the State for a single dollar tor that
purpose.

In my capacity as Warden and Treasurer of the Towa Peniten.
tiary, I always conceived it my duty to oppose the use and appli-
cation ot the tunds, except for purposes specified in the appropri-
ation. I therefore opposed the payment to Dr. S8hedd of the an.
nexed Bills, except when he was entitled to $2,50 per day for Su-
perintending the wall as named in the appropriation. In my eim.
plicity, I did not believe that the Legislature in making an appro.
priation for the support of the prison, for the building of a wall
and Hospital, or payment of debts, ever contemplated that it should
be expended in paying an Inspector five dollars per day and trav-
eling expenses over the Stateg, or for acting as a lobby when we
had Representatives to see to onr wants; neither did T think it was
intended to purchase costly plane, or pictures, or hire Foston men
as architects, or pay for visits to Keokuk and Burlington, or cven
to his Lawyers ; acting on that belief, honestly but perhaps with
erring judgment, I opposed the division of the funds to such pur-
poses and consequentiy last May my poeition as Warden was filled
by another, and I left the sitnation with a conscious satisfaction of
having done all in Ty power to protect and guard the interests of

the State.
P. INSKEEP:»

WM. GRAY,

Attest, :
Sec’y Board Com’s.

3 A ”
Arriv 2, 1858.
At a meehng of the Board held this 2nd day of April, Dr. 8hcdd.
and the Chairman rs 1 the Warden be re
quested not to act as Superintendent under the'new Law, untu «ne
turther order of the Board. .
Refer to Record of this date. '

-

“-
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o B.”
JAaNvARY 12, 1858.
At a meeting of the Board held this day, at the Penitentiary,
Messrs. Dorr and Babeock present. Mr. Winterbothan’s commu-
nication asking for more Shop Room was read.
Refer to Record of this date.

State or Towa,

’ To Georece SHEDD, Dr.
To fifty days services in visiting the Legislature in 1858
for the benetfit ot the Penitentiary, at five dol-
o e ST IO IR DRl ML DR L $250,00
' ' To expenses on'said visit.. .. ... ..., ............ 100,00
$350,00

Signed
GEORGE SHEDD.
Fort Madison, April 21, 1858.

Srare or lowa,
To Georee Surpp, Dg.
To Railroad and Stage tare on a tour of visitation to
Eastern prisons, during the months of May and
June, 1858, to-wit: Mo the prisons of Alton,
Columbus, Anburn, Albany, Sing Sing, N. York,

Philadelphia, Boston, Charleston, and Lawrenco $100,00

To forty-five days services rendered and tor mcidontaln ;
including Board @ $5,00 . .................". : 225,00
S ey i o i $325,00
To cash paid G. I. 8. Bryant for designs for Pnsona, 250,00
Doml. oo 0l Skt D sha D ¢ o vin L, . 575,00

Ck.
By cash on account of above...............00\0uun.. 400,00
I . L A e e, TR AT s, 8176 00
Approved. Signed
FRANOCIS 0. DORR .. .
Chmmn

Fort Madison, March 23, 1859.
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For THE USE OF THE PENITENTIARY.
StaTe oF Jowa,
To GEORGE SHEDD, D=z.
To services for State, by two visits to lowa City the past
winter and expenses for said visits in behalf of

R BIRBEE . oo o et o one oo s naah wt e 0 DGR $150,00
Received Payment,
Signed, GEO. SHEDD.
Srate oF Towa,

To GrorGe SHEDD, D=r.
To Superintendance of Walls &c., to date, 65 days @ $2 $162,50
« Milage for 65 trips, $3,00....cccnneervnrrrne--s 195,00
Total ..................................... -157,50

Cr.
By aaali@liB8 4 sui e e s e S e 155,00
BRI AR0 ¢ oL e L e SRR $202,50

Iowa Penitentiary, Nov. 21, 1857.

Srate oF lowa,
To GEORGE SHEDD, Dr.

To five days services, self, horse and buggy in visiting
Burlington and Keokuk. Trip by order of the
Board, on business of Penitentiary and for $9,

cash paid in XPenses. ... ..cecarsascrrscrne: $30,00

Fort Madison, April 19, 1858,

InspEcToRrs oF THE lowA PENITENTIARY,

To Georee C. Dixox, Dr. :
To written opinion given heretofore................ $10,00
‘ Approved. Signed 4
F. 0. DORR, '
Chairman.

After the reading, (by Secretary,) of the foregoing statement of
Mr. P. Tnskeep, late Warden of the Iowa Penitentiary, it was, on

motion, laid on the table.
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On motion of Mr. Robinson, the Committee then adjourned to
meet at the Iowa Penitentiary, for a full and final inspection of the
same ; and to meet again at two o'clock this afternoon.

WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.

Forr Mapison, Iowa,
Friday, March 2, 1860, 2 P. M. }

Committee met pursuant to adjournment.

Present, a full board, with I. C. Caurtis in the chair.

Mr. Udell introduced the following :

“ Resolved, That the Clerk of the Iowa Penitentiary be request-
ed to appear before the Committee ot Investigation, at their room
in the “McFarland House,” on to-morrow at 8 o’clock A, M. ; an(;
that he be requested to bring with him the Order Books, ’Tima
Books and all other books of original entries, and also, the Jour-
nals, Ledgers, Bank Books and vouchers now in his possession in
and by virtue of his office ; also all correspondence betwixt the In-
spectors of said Penitentiary and Ex-Governor’s Jas. W. Grimes
and Ralph P. Lowe, in reference to a visit of Geo, Shedd to the
castern states, and in reference to the laying of the contemplated
octagonal building at the said Iowa Penitentiary.”

3 (Copy of foregoing resolution was served on Clerk of Peniten~
ary.
WIILLTAM GRAY, Sec'y.)

On motion of Mr. Bowen it was

 Resolved, That our Secretary is ordered to request Mr. John
F. Edwards, Architect and Engineer of the Iowa Penitentiary, to
ascertain the number of cubic yards yet to be excavated at basc; of
t.he north and east walls of the Iowa Penitentiary, on the tollow-
ing basis, to wit:

Ten feet wide on base, with an angle of forty-five
:e} b]l.lff; and that the said Architeotgaud Engil};eer bgerz:;:;t:g
mn:::,)i: : ::i same, in writing ‘to this Committee, at his enrll"ew

On motion Committee adjourne i i rele
S e o i] d to meet again at eight o’clock

WILLIAM GRAY, Sec’y. .
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Forr Mapisox, Towa, }
Saturday, March 3d, 1860, 8 A. M.

i j ent.
Committee met pursnant to adjournmer :
All the members present,—Mr. Curtfs in th.e chair. i
On motion of Mr. Udell, the following estimate Report of .‘ r.
John F. Edwards, was received and ordered to be placed on file,

vigi— ,
Bank contained as per UrveY.... .....sc--- 37,3’07(1) C‘l:b. Y“ds.
Has been removed to March 1, 100..ms s oo 00s 13,

... 24011 o
Leaving to be removed. ... ......... R : i
To chagge the grade in accordance with the resolution .of D:;
tor Bowen, would in my opinion make about 10,000 cubic yards
: de. '
less to be removed, than former gra ; .
From the best information to be obtmfxed from dmgralr]n z.mii;
minutes by former Engineer, in my possession, 1 find t];at tf e,l; b
in the west wall, two towers, and gateway below grade ot yard,

5682 15

1868 perch stone paid for @ $3i05 10, L TIVIC, JOULR TR . $5682 _,
East wall, 8. E. tower, and same 50 ft of south wall below ot
yard ’grade, contains 1070 perch stone @ $3,060.°"% 326 :

2988 perch below yard grade.
Yard grade is one foot below the commencement of wa}l
h -
proper; therefore, between those two points there 18

i h pai 395 $861,10
Eastl;:flm i 223% s g Yoko s142’,20 1003 30
tiwdll, '

Total below wall proper as far as buildesnerannvans $9948 9%

Testitnony of Southwick Guthrie; the Clerk of the Io\wavPefm’-[
wnxrt:z.having been first duly sworn by I. C. Curtis, O?a:rm;t; ::
Joint Committee, appointed by * Concuf'rent Reaoh..lt.wnh ol. g
Eighth General Assembly of the State o.t Iowg, to visit the 'o“ |
Penitentiary,” &c., &c., deposeth and smtl? as follows, to wit .] "

Interrogatory 1. By Comrgnitte‘e. What is your name, age, pia 2

resi occupation ‘ |
d:::‘i::rcel,.ang&y nagxe is Southwick ‘Gnthri«‘a,—m.y age is thi‘rty ‘
years—my place of residence is at Fort Madison, in Leeo coun?j".u
Jowa—and my occupation is that of a book !ceeper. -

'L 9. By same. How longhave you resided at Fort Madison®

33

A. 2. T have resided permanently at Ft. Madison, in Lee coun-
ty, since the month ot June, A. D., 1857.

I. 3. By same. What are you now engaged in, as your per-
manent business !

A. 3. I am Clerk of the Iowa Penitentiary.

I. 4. By same. When were you employed as such clerk ¢ By
whom ¢ For how long a time ¢ At what salary? (or compensation,)
And how are you paid ?

A. 4. I was employed on the ninth day of November, a. b,
1859, by the Inspectors and Warden of the Iowa Penitentiary, for
an indefinite period of time, and at at a salary of five hundred dol-
lars (8500) per annum, and paid in drafts of the Warden of Iowa
Penitentiary, on Auditor ot State, at the expiration ot every three
months from and after the date ot my employment as Clerk of said
Penitentiary.

I. 5. By same. Have you the custody ot sll the records of
the Penitentiary from the foundation of the State Government till
the present date?

A. 5. I have not. I have all the books, records and papers that
were found by me in the office of Olerk of the IJowa Penitentiary,
at the time I assamed the duties of that office.

I. 6. By eame. Is there any record in your office, or else-
where, within your knowledge, showing the financial history ot
the Peunitentiary, prior to the organization of the State Govern-
ment ¢

A. 6. Thereis not. There are some small record books con-
taining some entries, but nothing from which anything definite can
be gathered.

I. 7. By same. Do the records in your possession, subse-
quent to the organization of the State Government, give a correct
financial history of the Institution from that date to the present
time ; and, if not, at what time may we date the commencement of
a correct financial history thereot

A. 7. From the organization of the State Government, in the
year 1846, until the commencement of the official term of Peni-
tentiary Warden, Richard Quinton, September 1st 1851 ; what lit-
tle record there is, is almost wholly unintelligible. During the
said Richard Quinton’s administration, or up to February 1st, A.
Dy 1253, the books appear to have been kept accurately. From
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that date until the first day of May 1857, they are in such confused

condition as renders it impracticable to make any correct state:

ment from them. Since the last named date I think we have a

correct financial history of the affairs of the Institution, not, how-

ever, from the original books, so much as from the results of the

investigation made by the Commission appointed by the Govgr—

nor. X %

I. 8. By same. Is there a record of all moneys 'recelved and

paid out by the Warden of the Iowa Penitentiary since the yefr!

1857 % ; ey .
A. 8. I believe there is a record of all the receipts, but amnot =
re there is of all the disbursements. i

suI. 9. By same. Whatis the earliest date of cf'edits tf’ tlfe Teﬂ

ritory, or State for moneys appropriated to said Institution a: : 2

shown by the records in your possession ? . ¥
A. 9. There never was any regular account opened with ﬁh@ ]

State until I came into office ; but from a certified statement fwdg e

the Auditor ot State, of date September 20,1859, we have accounﬂ&r‘.{_;;_"‘

riations as far back as 1848. 2
éf I?PES?P By same. Do the records show any account of the m“ .
ceipt and disbursement of $10,000 00 appropriated as per m#? §
the General Assembly, Feb. 25, 1847 ? , 1 : 8 |
A. 10. They do not. widfla i e
L. 11. By same. Do the records show the anditing and pqi
ment of any certificates of indebtedness for necessary expenses of
the Penitentiary, issued by John J. Cowhick, in the early part
the year 1856, as provided for by act of the G‘ren.e‘ral .;Aesemlzly
proved February 25th, 1847. If so, what did said certifica
amount to, and when and how were they paid ? |
4. 11. There is no record ot anything done about the abo
except the statement of the Au%itor,har:d his.ﬁstgt;::ventlf?
w that anything was done under that specifie - Tt simpl;
::zwst&aat nghicg received, in 1848, $233,00, as salary of Wafa i
and in June, 1849, $111,01; and in February 1849, 5.13.8,99., !
gundry small accounts, to divers persons $456,20 ; but }t is noy
intimated that any of the above payments were made in pu -
Of;.nif;ct:By the same. What do the records show, if anytl
about the receipt and disbursement of §6,000,00, appropngﬁed
act of the General Assembly, Sec. 6, approved Jan. 13, 1849.?‘

'ﬁ
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4. 12. They don’t show anything about it.

Z. 13. By the same. What do the records show, if anything,
about the receipt and disbursement of $10,000,00, appropriated
by act of the General Assembly, approved Feb. 5, 1851 ¢

A. 18. By the records it will be seen that $8,787,00, of said ap-
propriation was expended in “ construction account,” $692,89 ; in
the payment of officers’ salaries, and the residue, say $570,55, in
general support.

/. 14. By same. What do the records show about the appro-
priation ot $1,000 tor “defraying the expenses of settling the af-
fairs of the Penitentiary,” approved February 5th, 1851 ?

4. 14. T find of that appropriation $882 39 was paid as appro-
priated.

1. 15. By same. What do the records show about the appro-
priation by act of the General Assembly, approved J anuary 24th,
1853, of $6,606 341

4. 15. The cash books of that date show the receipt of part
of said appropriation, and the other records show some disburse-
ments out of the same; but in each the entries are in such a dis-

jointed and confused condition that it is difficult, if not impossi-
bles, to arrive at a correct conclusion about the matter. '
* 1. 16. By same. Do the records show the receipt and dis-
bursement of the amount named in a resolution, approved Janua-
ry 10th, 1855, of $180,00¢

4. 16. The cash book of that date shows the receipt of said
amount, but what was done with it is not so clear by the books.

1. 17. By same. What does the record show was done with
the appropriations made by the act of the (General Assembly, ap-
proved January 25, 1855, of $11,584 46 ¢
~ 4. 17. 1Ifind by examination of the cash book, large sums
were received at different times 5 some ot which were received on
special accounts, as “cells,” “general support,” &e., and others
are not so described, and these sums are again transterred to a
general cash account in the ledger of that date; and the eredits
again are so promiscuonsly entered, without specifying to what
cash account they belong, that it is difficult to tell, by the books,
whether the money has all been received ; ory it received, on
what account it has been disbursed ; although, in many instances,

the books show much larger eredits than debits in the cash ac.
counts,
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same. Do the records show the receipt and dis-
buf;etlintlg' the appropriation made by act of the General As-
sembly, approved July 14, 1856, ot $5,900% s :

A. 18. 1 find on the books that the $2,900 appropriated for :‘e-
building the workshops, (burned down,) and al.so the. $.1,000’1{)r
the payment of outstanding debts, anq $1,075 for bm.ldmg ce e;
was received ; but, if disbursed a;:c?]rdmg to the requirements o

do not show it fully.
"heIa(itf; thel’?v;o:ak;e. Is there any record of the receipt of §23.00
auttolori;ed to be paid to the Warderlx by act of the General z;s-
sembly, approved July 12, 1856 ¢ it so, what do they show. e-
id sum ¢
MT (;:).salg:sf The books show it to have been received, and I
presume it was put into the general fund, as all cash was kept to-
20;}.19;6. What do the records show was done, it anything with
the apppropriation of $20,000, approved J.a.nuary 15, 1857 ?b vess

A. 20. I find that said sum was received, as appears by 3
Day Book, and that said day book shows that Balfi sum w.zs e
posited with Knapp & Eaton, banken:s; but there is no evi et;)c:
of the transfer of said entry to the journal, ledger, or any o 12—
book of the institution. I find, also, t..lmt although t'hfare ;)s n:)seof
try showing that said money was alplphed to :;1: ;;:c;glﬁactodjie;tcerent

riation, yvet there are several large 3u .
;I::l);:};:at:ze (;oyntractors tor building th.e ?uter wallsl; which itﬁrer:‘
satisfied were paid out ot gaid appropriation ; and t ere; s::: i
stums shown to have been paid for purposes of genera }T e
ment, which, 1 suppose came out of the appropnanoul.su o
was, also, $4,000 of it taken by the Inspectors for gefn;:ra 4 E]; i
und: (which was subaeqnentllg reitlrlxlal:lr:e:.{l :‘::n cv;l!m; . (;v:: Bar

: r making a R :
flﬁn::nge;?:;t:i)tﬁ: I can ﬁﬁd that it ever paid, there is s;me-
thing over $1,700 which 1 cannot account for. It six:ul;l Jna:::
been on hand at that time, to wit : on, or about the 1st o
‘rydgil:n?{ttm adjourned to meet again in their rooms at halt past

- ¢ Marchdtithe
8 o'clock on Monday morming HEXh o) L [AM GRAY, Sedy.

-
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Forr Mapison, Iowa, }
Monday, March 5, 1860, 4 past 8 A. M.

Commiittee met parsuant to adjournment.

Mr. Curtis in the chair.

The examination of Southwick Guthrie was resumed as fol-
lows, viz:

Z. 21. At what time was the twenty thousand dollars, ($20,-
000) mentioned in last interrogatory, drawn from the State Treas-
ury, and deposited with Messrs. Knapp & Eaton, bankers {

4. 21. 1 don’t know, specifically, but about the 27th April,
1857. The warrants were drawn, and they were deposited with
Knapp & Eaton, within two or three days afterwards as I gath-
ered from the books.

1. 22. Was the cash drawn and deposited or the Auditor’s
warrant ¢
A. 22. The books show Auditors’s Warrant ¢

/. 23. Was the whole amount drawn at once, or was it drawn
in small parcels ?

A. 23. All at once.

I 24, How long did that amount remain with the bankers be-
tore it began to be used for the legitimate purposes tor which it
was appropriated ?

A. 24, The first thing I find of payments, which I am satisfied
came from said fund, is a recejpt (which I herewith present) of
McHenry & Dinsmore, of $1,522 00, dated July 8d, 1857, which
amount was paid on monthly estimates, the twenty two ($22) dol-
lars being interest which had accrued on the warrants of £1,500.00,
as the books show, and with which MecHenry & Dinsmore were
charged ; and from that date until the 1st Janunary, 1858, various
sums were drawn at divers times, in State warrants, amounting in
the whole, to $14,000 00—including the above, $15,000 00—the
interest on which amounted to $462 00, or thereabonts, which in-
terest McHenry & Dinsmore allowed on said warrants, and they
look to the State for it. -

1. 25. Who deposited the $20,000 00 with Knapp & Eaton,
and to whose account was said sum credited on the bank books ¢

A. 25. T do not know, nor do the Penitentiary books show.

1. 26. Was, or is there no bank pass book, or other account,
amongst the archives ot the Penitentiary, to throw light upon the
transactions between the oflicers thereot and the bank ?




38

A, 26. There is a pass book, which I herewith present, showing
the deposit of cash, and then here are the checks, (presenting them)
which are all that I can find; but I have never found anything
like an account of the deposit of warrants.

1. 27. Was there any arrangement between the Penitentiary,
or any of its officers, and the bank, about interest on deposits ! or
. was the bank permitted to use the funds trom time to time without
. any allowance therefor ; while, at the same time, the bank charged
a per centage for advances made on State warrants deposited with
- them ?

. A. 27. 1 don’t know anything about that.
. I 28. Do you, or do yon not know that the bank did shave
said warrants when over advances were made on them by the bank?
4. 28, 1 find a record of $475 00 cash being deposited with
Knapp & Eaton, which 1 believe was the proceeds of one $500 00
~ warrant bought by them, thongh I did not transact the business
~ myselt; and there are several other entries of the same kind and
. character, both with the bankers and others.

1. 29. 1Isit, or is it not, a common thing for State warrants to
be shaved by the bank and others, at large discount, in procuring
- cash for the purposes of said Penitentiary ?

A. 29. Itis a common thing to sell State warrants at five per
cent discount on their face, and take currency, or prineipally Fort
. Madison Serip, which is considered Aere as any other currency.

1. 30. You stated in your answer to interrogatory 24th, that
~ fourteen thousand ($14,000 00) dollars of the twenty thousand

($20,000 00) was paid out between the third day of July, 1857, and
~ the first day of January, 1858, together with $462 interest thereon.
Now, what became of the balance of the appropriation ?

A. 80, Four thousand dollars was transferred to the general
support of the institution, by the Warden, with the consent of the
Iuspectors, there being no other fands on hand for that purpose.

1. 31. At what time was this transfer made?

A. 31. The books do not show when the transter was made.
The only way I can know abont it is, that the warrants were drawn,
sold for that purpose, and thus appropriated at different dates.

1. 32. What become of the residue of the appropriation ?

A. 32. Some small amounts were paid out for purposes ot gen-
eral improvement, but there was something over $1,700 00 that
ought to have been on hand on the first day of January, 1858, as
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before stated ; but I can give no account of it. It may have been
on hand, and absorbed in the general cash account.

/. 33. CQCan you give any other, or further imformation about
said appropriation ?

4. 33. 1 cannot.

Z. 3¢&. What do you know about the receipt and disbursement
ot an appropriation of $2,892 12, approved January 29th, 18571

A 34. I find on the cash book, under date of the 28th March,
1857, an entry of the receipt from the Aunditor of State of $2,892.00.
I also find sundry credits on said cash book, for money paid out,
but have, myself, never undertaken the task of balancing it; and
whether said appropriation was legitimately applied to the pur-
poses for which it was designed, I cannot tell.

Z. 35. What do you know about the receipt and disbursement
of an appropriation of $42,300 00, approved March 13, 1858 ?

A. 35. I know, from the records of the institution, that the
whole sum was received ; and I suppose it was deposited in bank,
simply because it was usunal so to do, and because there was no
other safe place for it. The law divided the appropriation into
several distinct parcels, for specific purposes. Four thousand dol-
lars was applied to the reimbursing the sum taken out of the $20,-
000 00 to which reference was had in my answer to interrogatory
No. 20. The residue was, as I snppose, thrown into the general
cash acconnt, as was the custom, as I have before stated ; and al-
though the law designed that each specific object shonld receive
its own funds, yet the record nowhere shows that it did so; and
as to whether it has all been faithfully appropriated to the purposes
tor which it was designed, I cannot tell; though I see that some
has been applied to “ Wall” and some to other purposes. (See
statement of funds in Warden’s Report.)
wCommittee then adjourned to meet again in Committee Room,
at 2 o’clock this afternoon.

WM. GRAY, Secy.

Fort Madison, lowa, :
Monday, March 5th, 1860, 2 P. M.

Committee met pursnant to adjournment.

A full Board present.

I. O. Curtis in the Chair.
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The examination of Southwick Guthrie was resumed as fotlows,
viz: —

1. 36. What do you know about the receipt and disbursement
ol the appropriation ot $2,180,00, under act approved March 23d,
1858, for payment of salaries of officers of the Iowa Penitentiary 1

A. 36. The records show that said money was received and
paid out according to law.

1. 37. From your examination of the books, since this investi-
gation commenced, have you found any explanation of any of your
tormer answers, or any farther developments not now testified to,
with regard to the finances of the Institution?

A. 37. In my answer to interrogatory 18, I stated thatI found
$1,075,00 ont of $2,000,00, which was appropriated tor *cells,”
July 14th, 1856 ; I now find the balance of said appropriation to
h:.ve .been received January Tth, 1857. This is all I now think
of.

7. 38. Are the statements made by the Commissioners in the
report to the Governor, of their investigations of the affairs of the
Towa Penitentiary, so far as its former management is concerned,

substantially correct ?

A. 38, To the best of my knowledge and beliet they are.

7. 39. What is the system now adopted for keeping the ree-
ords ot the Institution, so far as regards the receipts and disburse-
ments from the State Treasury ?

A. 39. A system of “double entry,” by which every separate
fund and interest, has its own appropriate account, such as “wall
fund,” “hospital building fund,” *‘general support fund, &ec.,” so
that where appropriations are made for a specific interest, or pur-
pose, that purpose alone shall reap the benefit of that appropria-
tion, unless I am specially ordered by the Inspectors, or Warden,
to transter one fund to the usec of another, then the appropriate
entry, of course, has to be made.

1. 40, What amount of funds belonging to any one of the ac-
counts, proper, is now on hand, as shown by the records at this
date ? : :

A. 40. Upto the 29th ot last February,there was in the wall fund
$1,732,31, as shown by the books herewith presented. There is,
also, $153,31 cash, $125,99 of which belongs to the “Convicts
Fund,” and $27,32 to General Support Fund.

!
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/. 41. How much is the entire indebtedness of the Institution,
of every nature, kind and description up to date?

(At this point of the taking of the testimony of Mr. Guthrie, a
recess was taken, affer which he the said Mr. Guthrie, submitted
the following report, (marked “E”) of “the entire indebtedness ot
the Institution, of every nature, kind and dessription, up to date.”

WILLIAM GRAY,

Secretary.)
“ E‘ ”

A. 41. Since October 1st, 1859, the date of the Warden’s re-
port, the books show additional entries, as follows :

On' ' KecoangrWnlls . . iveqet ofo o W aoa. dn' Subal $2,203,57
EUOURVEP PRSI T 0 T RTVR IV e 7,686,68
e G Dy LG LT i S TSR SR BT cooe o 1,834,60
4 L Escaped Qonvicts, . . ..\, ohsadvn aadis 4,10
e e Hospital Buildingy. 1w LTl vv v, 56,00
b 5 Fuel apd EABbasdinim . . AR 8uh, vas. Ju 1,068,44
o 5 Tnproneonemte . 00 Fali v ba ¥ iy s i 242,76
- " Hospital expense ............... Slria 212,04
- s B G R S T 55,27
v " SONA, BB W RK . . o PP By e e nn 12,27
w Ky Armeand ammnpition . .....c.vuesenny. 21,91
" " Igterest:. ... .. S RS N e 2,26
- o Clothing and Bedding............. ..o 2,456,78
- i TAOPREY . o e Y PE v o5 DLt GRS 12,40
o e Qlerks OMIE8 |, s 100, oo v g COMEE Sae 82,85
& bt PrOvISIOn . iy 7i04aT 0 4, 0s g d S T 0 Ch 4,969,24
. o Ol Room Bxp o e as e t, . 9,85
- " B L R TR Ak v W 11,55
- - s e S D e R 64,93
o 5 Physiclasesalary = S0, Aioviiii ., o 175,00
& a Convigts B B O P o v e e s o s ue 86,74
i i B o I L R v v 2,317,85
" - Discharged convietsy ' 71 00 0L 000 292,72
o . Liawy et IO N IPP R b e L T 105,80
“ w DiEcoant \iQor Iy, i vaad Lol ek 66,11
& " Warden"sexpeneerital vl UL Lol S0 4,50
# pé Bxpl Qe Aew?t i, Ui Jiv o vl vul 120,95
L % Work shop-. ...... 000000, e
4 # Exchange? ..................... 5§ ithd 6’00‘15;2;
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Amount credited Messrs. McHenry & Dinsmore, and

charged to P. Inskeep 450,73

ROBAL oY S udE . b5 b Gl <L dvne 9 08 pial $23,938,67
Am’t. debt as per Warden’s report,(standing on books,) 24,708,66
$48,647,33

925,00

1,375,00

Potél debt; aollit Mp o Teadlithha, wals eyl $50,247,33

From which deduct as per Warden’s report, 3,447,27

do o T RS R S e
Add claim of G. W. Douglass, no Bill rendered, .. ..
Excavation for Wall since March 1st.,

L Ly e e s o SR 1,732,31
Gualifrdbm Gov. Lowe,. . .. .......... ... 1,500,00
Cash from other sources, ................ . 284,98 6,064,56

$48,982,77

In addition to the above there is the accrued interest on $32,-
222,54 notes outstanding, which could not be stated without com-
pulation ; also, amounts due Warden, Deputy Clerk and Chaplain,
for about two months services each, a small balance due the Phy-
sician, say one and one half month’s salary; and an amount of
about $500,00 due architect for engineering and other services, for
which no bill has yet been rendered to the Warden.

These amounts may not be strictly accurate, but as nearly so as
can be had without making out a general balance sheet.

1. 41. If your indebtedness is $43,282,77, and you have on
hand in the bank $1,732,31, as stated in answer to interrogatory
40, why is not that amount applied to the liquidation ot the debts
so far as it goes?

A. 42. 1 do not know sir.

1. 43. Can you explain the reasons for Governor Lowe’s ad-
vance of $6,500,00 to the Institution, out of what fund he advanced
it, by what law, and why the necessity therefor?

A. 43. I do not know out of what fund, nor by what law he
was governed, but the Institution was out of funds, and Gov.
Lowe, on application, advanced said sam of $6,500,00 for general
support.

1. 44. Do you, or do yon not know of any moneys, or State

‘
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Warrants having been received by any of the officers of the Pen-
itentiary, and which have not been accounted for on the books of
the Institution ?

A. 44. I find by the Auditor’s statement ot September 29th,
1859, that Phineas Inskeep late Warden of the Penitentiary re-
ceived

Jannary 13th, 1888puaawy, siidia Ju $25,00
January 19th, 1858,................ 55,00
January 28th, 18609,.......... X 75,00 Chaplain’s salary
Febrnary 10th,1859,........ ... ..., 83,33 Wardens’ salary
Pobrusey @0th) 1850, 1. rvol o S 41,66 Dept “  salary

Febroary 10th,;1859,................ 75,41 Clerk B. salary

Making in the aggregate $355,40, which was never charged to
said Warden, on the books of the prison, though it is but just to
say that the Deputy Warden and Clerk acknowledged receiving
the above sums, and the Chaplain was paid $75,00, but no credit
was given the State for any of the above. The said Warden did
‘credit himselt with the payment of the $75,00. T do not remem-
ber now of any other cases ot the above character.

1. 45. What is the nature of the agreement between the In-
spectors and Warden, on the one hand, and J. F. Edwards the re-
puted engineer and architect ot the Institution, on the other hand,
with regard to duty, services and salary ?

A. 45: 1 can state nothing, except that an order is recorded
under date ot September 28th, 1859, that said Edwards be retain-
ed as architect, and that his compensation shall depend upon his

"services. Then I have three bills, rendered by Edwards, showing
that his charges, as allowed by the Inspectors, were about equal
to $45,00 per month, as engineer; and $5,00 per day as architect.

1. 46. By the report of the Warden, it appears that Phineas
Inskeep, late Warden, was indebted to the Institution $2,278,11.
Have you ascertained anything since that report, which increases
or diminishes his apparent liability ? If so state what it is.

A. 46. I have found mistakes in the records which when rec-
titied increases the indebtedness of Mr. Inskeep $539,86, and 1
think likely it will be found that his liability will still be increased
more. I have pretty good evidence of $119,27 more at least.

Committee adjourned till 74 o’clock this evening.

WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.
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Fort Madison, Iowa, %
Monday, March 5th, 1860, 74 o’clock P. M.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment.
All the members present.
I. C. Curtis in the Chair,
Examination of Sonthwick Guthrie resumed.
/. 47. How are appropriations drawn from the State Trea.snry
for the use of the Penitentiary ? 2
A. 7. Usually on the order ot the Inspectors.
/. 48. When drawn where are they placed for safe keeping
and disbursement ? i
A. 48. As tar as my knowledge extends usually in bank. ]
/. 49. What system ot disbursement is adopted by the officers
of the lowa Penitentiary ? =
A. 49. There is no regular system, Sometimes the Inspectors
order it, and at others the Warden pays it without such order;
but since 10th November last, the Inspectors have made no or-{j
ders, but the money has been paid out by the Warden alone. -3
1. 50. Have the Inspectors forbidden the payment of tue
checks of the Warden in any instance ¢ It so, when,and to wlnm,ﬂ
amount, and what have been the reasons assigned by them for
8o doing ? fi
A, 50, Ot my own knowledge, I know nothing about that.
1. 51, Havethere been regular settlements between the Inspee- |
tors and the Warden heretofore, and are there now with the prev ‘
ent Warden. ,
A. 51. When [ came into office, I found a lot ot monthly state
ments on file, reaching trom Jan., 1858, to and including Augus
1859, but no more; and I have not discovered any settlements
otherwise than those above stated.
/. 52. Have you compared the moneys deposited with the bank |
and the amount drawn from the bank, by any or all officers of the |
Penitentiary ? 1f so, what is the result of your investigations?
A. 52. I bave done but little in that matter, 8o far as I have §
examined, the bank books appear to be correct. &
S. GUTHRIE. «
Committee adjourned to meet again to-morrow morning, at .
past 8 o’clock. 3
WM. GRAY, Sec’y.
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Forr Mapison, Iowa, }
Tuesday, March 6th, 1860, § past 8 A. M.

Committee met pursuant to adjournment.

All the members present—Mr. Curtis in chair.

Southwick Guthrie, clerk of the Iowa Penitentiary, being pres-
ent in Committee Room, submitted the following copy, trom the
minute book of the Inspectors, (marked “F.”) after which, on
wotion, it was ordered to be placed and kept on file (see following
page.)

TIowa Penrrenrtiary, May 5th, 1857.

Regular qnarterly meeting of Inspectors. Present, Dr. George
Shedd, Charles Brewster and J. H. Little, chairman. Inspectors
proceeded to fix the salary of the following officers, in accordance
with the discretionary power vested in them by authority ot the
Legislature, viz :

Salary of Deputy Warden shall be $500 a year.

Salary ot Clerk shall be $400 a year.

Day Guards shall receive for the first month, on trial, thirty -three
dollars a month, for subsequent months (if approved) thirty-seven
dollars a month,

Night Guards shall receive tor the first month, on trial, forty dol-
lars, and tor subsequent months (if approved,) forty five dollars a
month,

Taking all the circumstances of the Prison, and the limited
amount of appropriations to carry out the contemplated improve-

~ ments to the Prison into consideration, the Inspectors deem it in-

expedient to order at present the construction of twenty-five cells,
and also the foundation of the Hospital; and will for the present
direct all their efforts to the construction of the stone wall around
the Prison, and have determined apon the following specifications,
ViZ ;—

East Wall. Running north and south, 350 feet long, with short
wall 17 feet west, to north-east corner of Cell building,.

North Wall. Two hundred and forty teet long east and west.

West Wall. Three hundred and ninety-four feet long, north and
south. The entire wall shall be built of good lime stone rubble
work, composed of large stones of such quality as shall withstand
the action of the weather.
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Foundation. To be 4 feet thick, and to commence six feet be-
low the present surface of the ground, where the wall shall be
formed of embankment, and six feet below the grade of the yard
where the same is formed in excavation, to be laid in good quick
lime mortar, and carried up full width one foot above the grade of
the yard. . .

‘Wall Proper. Shall be 3 feet thick at the base, 22 feet. Iugh,'ls
inches thick at the top, vertical on the inner side or surface, with
batter of 18 inches on the outer surface ; and shall be surmc'mnted
with a cut stone coping, 3 feet wide and eight inches thick, of good
large durable lime stone rock, well bedded on the wall, and ﬁf'ml Yy se-
cured to each other by two rows of iron clamps, leaded into the
stones ; each row 9 inches from the centre of the wall.

Both the inside and outside surface of the wall to be laid as 3
smoothly as is compatible with the style of rubble masonry, and |}
to be well laid in good quick lime mortar.

Towers. Four in number, (one at each corner ot Fhe wall,) shall
be of neatly cut stone, of the same quality, (it reqmret.i by the In-
spectors) as those now used in building cells, octagonal in torm and ,
carried up to the top of the wall coping. |

Gateway. There shall be an arched gateway at the south w?st 1
front, closed with a heavy double oak vlank i‘ron banded and riv- 1
ited doorway ; and at the north west corner of the present W_ards-
ens’ building, an iron grated gateway ; each‘to be ten feet'mde; ;
cach to be furnished with smaller doors for tootn_;en; all with the
necessary fixtures for opening, clogsing and fastening from the wp

11.
OFI:iha(:e:jtls. All the stone, lime and other mt'a.terials used in the |
foregoing work, to be subject to the approval of the Inspectors be- 4
tore being used in the work. B |

15 Per Cent. Fifteen per cent. of the amount of work done, to b
be retained until the completion of the contract. X

Payment. Payments to be made in Statte Auditors’ Warrants,
bearing 8 per cent interest, on monthly estnmates. as the wqu pro-
gresses, until the appropriation ot 16000 dolla.ra is expended,‘vand 1
the balance, if any, {to await futurc appropriations of the State
Legislature. : K

Bidders. Bidders will state the price per yard, of earth excava.
ions, and also of embankments, the price per perch of stone laid '3
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in foundation wall ; also in wall proper, the price per perch of cut
stone in towers and coping.

Completion. The arched gateway at the south west corner of
the present Wardens building, and the west wall, and the north
wall including the towers belonging to the walls ; also the founda-
tion of the east wall and towers must be completed by the first
day of November next. The east wall proper and towers must be
completed by the first day ot July 1858.

Sureties. Bidders will name in their bids the persons whom
they will give as sureties on their bonds for the faithful performance
of contracts.' The Inspectors reserve to themselves the privilege
to set aside any, and all bids, should they be deemed extravagantly
high.

APPROXIMATE ESTIMATES,
Say 8,000, cubic yards of earth excavation.
10,000, « % . % embankment.
2,900, perches ot stone foundation.
2,700, LI * wall proper.
300, L L ** in towers and coping.

Two gates—-one wood—one iron.
J. H. LITTLE, Chairman.
GEORGE SHEDD,

CHAS. BREWSTER,
Adjourned to May 25, 1857.

Testimony of George Shedd, Lee County, Iowa.

After having been duly sworn by Nathan Udell, of the Commit-
tee, Mr. Shedd deposeth and saith as follows, to wit :

I. 1. By what act, in your opinion, have the contractors for
convict labor, in the Iowa Penitentiary violated their contract with
the State ?

A. 1. The spirit of the contract has been violated in the fol-
lowing particulars, viz: Should a convict, by chance, happen to
get hold of a match, or fire from furnaces, or cook room, and set
fire to shavings and the great mass ot combustible matter there,
they could make a stampede, and would, almost inevitably escape ;
and much, or all of the State property be destroyed, with proba-
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bly lossof life. Being furnished with no suitable means of. c.luelling
fires, very disastrousconsequences would follow. Thespirit ot t.he
contract is violated in that the contractors have erected a saw mill,
without authority, in the Penitentiary yard, and th\fs, in a most
eminent degree, endangering the safety of the Institution. The
said saw mill intercepts, entirely, the view trom the only guz?.rd
house from which a view may be had of of the yard tence w.hlcb
fence of 60 feet is in the most dangerous and cxpost.ed part of the
yard, it being within a few feet of the larges.t shop in VthCl:] are
ladders, and other instruments in use for scaling .and tearing lown
tence; said mill also preventing any chance of the gu:?rds shoot-
ing the convict in such attempt. They have refused, without just
cause to employ but a part ot the convicts—a far less number t'har(;
is specified in the contract—as under the _contract.they are requu;::
to employ nine tenths of the able bodied convncts——whereas,} :1‘;
the last year they have refusgd to employ more than from onc h
-fitths of them.
g Im;cc What is your opinion in regard to the cupacity.of the shop
room, to work to advantage, the whole 'm.lmber ot convicts ?

A. 2. They have never, in my opinion, laclfcd for shop rﬁf)n]:
to work to advantage all the convicts ix} the prison ; and I tdmd
they now have room sufficient to \\;orkdirom fifty, to one hundre

: they have employed.
p(‘;.cgt‘t ';‘;’;‘;tth‘::s th}(,a amount f’orywhich .the coutra.cto;s were
sned for convict labor, and when was that su:lr, commenced ¢

A. 3. The amonnt was between twenty-five hutfdred and three
thousand dollars, and the sunit was commenced previous to the May

[ or 1859, -
terIlTl :t O\()}Vul:z: 0amouni: has since accrued to the State for convict
labor ¢

A. 4. I think between seven and eight thousand dollars up to

resent time. by,
thi.p.'t. Have they failed to pay over as per the terms of their
contract ?

A. 5. They have. b

I. 6. How often have the Inspectors eftaml'ned the mannex;}:)f
keeping the books and accounts of the l?emtenlimry 5 and hav: e

duties of the officers been faithtully performed in this respect .
A. 6. The Inspectors have examined the manner of keeping
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the books regularly, once a quarter, and frequently once a month,
and had-supposed the officers had taithtully performed their duty.

I. 7. Have the Inspectors and Warden obtained duplicate re-
ceipts for all expenditures made on account of the Penitentiary
and has a copy of each been forwarded to the Auditor of State
monthly ?

A. 7. The Inspectors have required duplicate receipts to be
taken, according to law, and one forwarded to the Auditor of
State. :

L. 8. Did the Inspectors settle with the Warden monthly, and
agent the same accordingly ; if not, how often ¢

A. 8. No they have not. Sometimes once a quarter, and al-
ways at the end of the year.

I. 9. At the last settlement with Phineas Inskeep, was there a
balance found to be due him, and said balance paid him ¢

A 9. There was, as was at that time supposed.

I. 10. How can you account for the difference in your settle-
ment with the said Inskeep, and the amount found on the books
against him by the Commissioners appointed by the Governor ?

A. 10. I cannot only in part.

I 11. What part, and to about what amount #

A. 11. Several errors have since been found by the board ; in
amount less than three hundred dollars, I presume.

I. 12. Is the following statement found on page 11 of the Re-
port of the Commissioners appointed by the Governor to investi-
gate the affairs ot the Towa Penitentiary correct? to wit :

“We find they have allowed Dr. Shedd, one ot their number, at
the rate of five dollars per day, mileage, and traveling expenses,
visiting prisons of others States—the Legislature of this State at
different times, and for plan procured, &c., the sum of eleven hun-

dred and fifteen dollars—two hundred and fifty ot which was paid
Architect, at Boston, for plan.”

A. 12. Tt is, save only, the amount is $1,015 00, instead of
$1,115 00 ; and I never charged or received any “mileage.”

L 13. Did you pay Mr. Bryant, an Architect of Boston Mas-
sachusetts the sum ot $250 for plans of Penitentiary building?

A. 13. I did pay him $225; and Mr. John F. Edwards, for as-
sisting me, $25; whichis all included in one receipt from Mr, Bry-
ant of amount two hundred and fifty dollars,

7
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1. 14. Who employed Mr. John F. Edwards, as Architect and
Engineer of the Iowa Penitentiary ?

A. 14. The Board of Inspectors.

I. 15. IHow much does he receive tor his gervices ?

A. 15. Five dollars per day, when employed as Architect, and
forty-five dollars per month as Engineer, for two months.

I. 16. What rate of interest have the Board of Inspectors
agreed to pay on Penitentiary notes given to Messrs. McHenry
and Dinsmore for excavating on the north side ot the yard, for work
done this winter ?

A. 16. Twelve per cent—the fonr per cent above eight, as
per contract was given as @ bonus for having the work done this
winter, ;

@. 17. Have youn ever cbtained the opinion of the Attorney
General, in reference to the right of the Inspectors to charge
mileage in going to and from the usual places of meeting of the
Board of Inspectors ?

A. 17. 1 have—ard he is of the opinion that they, (the In-
spectors,) are entitled to mileage in attending all of the regular
meetings, and all special meetings called by the Chairman of said
Board of Inspectors,

Committee then adjourned to meet at an early hour this after-
noor.

Forr MAapison, Iowa, }
Tuesday, March 6, 1860, 3 P. M. | -

Committee met at the hour above specified.

A quorum ot the members present.

Mr. Bowen asked to submit the following written interrogato-
ries to Doctor George Shedd, who was then and there present:

Committee consented. (See questions marked “ G.”)

G.

Q. 1. Did you have horses shod at the Penitentiary free of
charge or without intending to pay therefor?

@. 2. Have you had your neighbor’s horses shod or required
the contractors to do the same free of charge; or have you re-
ceived pay therefor in any instance ?

Q. 3. What did you do to interfere with the powers and du-
ties of Ingkeep, as Warden ?
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@. 4. Did you pay ont all the money as shown in your ac-

count for expenses in your trip east ?

¢ 5. What advice did Grimes and Lowe give you in regard
to your trip east

@. 6. What was the occasion and necessity of the Board of
Inspectors meeting as frequently as they did ¢

. 7. Did you examine and know for yourself on actnal in.
spection, that the walls of the prison were built in a substantial
and workman like manner? '

@. 8. Before paying estimates for building wall did you re-
quire the Engineer to make a survey and estimate, and have you
kept snch estimate on file ?

@. 9. Have you given orders to the bank not to pay Warden
Inskeep’s checks?

@. 10. Have yon ever assumed the management and control
of the Board of Inspectors, and were you more troublesome after
1838, after the Legislature placed the superintendency in the
hands of the Warden ? '

@. 11. How wmuch did yon allsw and pay, if anything, the
contractors upon an estimate for excavation and embankment for
the ioundation, when in fact no excavation nor embankment was
done #—What did they amount to, if any such was done?

@- 12. Ilow much extra allowance was made for the gate and
archway, and over and above the specifications made in the con-
tract, or for charges made by the Board 1

@- 13. Was the west wall received from the contractors and
paid for in its present contorted condition, and without the coping
being bolted down, as per contract ¢

@ 14, Was there an agreement between the Board and Con-
tractors, with or without the knowledge ot the Warden, made
with the cashier ot the bank that the retained per centage on
wall should be held by the bank on special deposit ? if 8o, was the
bank to have the use of said tunds without any per centage ?

@. 15. Iave you ever given orders to the Warden to make
purchases of certain persous in this place, and not to trade with
certain other persons f

@. 16.  How much did the tablature, or engraving of names,
cost, that was made to place over the gateway ot the Iowa Peni-

tentiary, and then not used, or turned ¢nsids instead of owlside
the prison walls ¢



AR

S

52

Committee then adjourned to meet again to-morrow morning at
an early hour.
WILLIAM GRAY, Sec’y.

Fort Madison, Iowa, |
Wednesday, March 7, 1860, 3 past 7, A. M. §

A’ quorum of the Committee were present. In the absence of
the Chairman, Mr. Udell was called npon to preside.

The following is the testimcny of Phineas Inskeep, of Lee Co.,
late Warden of the Iowa Penitentiary, who, after having been duly
sworn by Nathan Udell, Chairman pro tem. of Com., deposeth and
saith as follows, to-wit : !

@. 1. When were you appointed Warden of the Iowa Peniten-
tiary, and how long did you serve in that office ?

A. 1. 1 was duly installed into the office of Warden of the
fowa Penitentiary, on the first day ot May, A. D. 1857, and held
the same office for two years thereafter.

¢. 2. Who was your book-keeper %

4. 2. R. A. Brown.

. 8. Were you controlled in the disbursement of the funds of
the Iowa Penitentiary by the Inspectors of the same ?

A. 3. I was; being at all times @ mere cypher in their hands?

. 4. Did the Inspectors ever draw and disburse any of the
tunds independent of you, or without your approval or knowledge ?

A. 4. They did draw, at one time, when I was from home,
about $441 00. This amount was drawn while I was up north, by
order of the Board, purchasing potatoes for use ot convicts.

Q. 5. Were the accounts and vouchers by which the Inspectors
from time to time settled with you, as appears by their record,
furnished by you, or by the Clerk ?

A. 5. By the Clerk, as he kept the books, for I, at no time,
knew anything about how matters stood, only as the Clerk and
Inspectors informed me. 1 was entirely under their control, and
I supposed then, and do so now, that those settlements are correct.
My own accounts were kept by the Clerk, also. I kept no account
myself, but relied wholly upon him and the Inspectors to keep
them and settle them correctly.

Q. 6. Did the Inspectors undertake to control yon, as Super-
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intendent ot the construction of improvements of the Iowa Peni-
tentiary ?

A. 6. They did, on the 2d day of April, 1858, make an order
which is on record, requiring me not to act as Superintendent of the
work, and during the balance of my term of office they did control
me, and appointed one of their own number, Mr. Babcock, Super-
intendent, in violation of the law approved March 18th, 1858, mak-
|lnsg5 8the same my duty, as appears from their record of May 8th,

@. 7. Were those freqnent meetings of the Board of Inspectors,
as appears from the records, actually necessary ?

4. 7. Ido not think that the business and affairs of the Peni-
tenitiary required such frequent meetings.

P. INSKEEP.
Attest Wwu, Gray, Sec'y.

George Shedd, the witness to whom written questions had been
propounded yesterday, by Mr. Bowen, appeared again before the
Committee, and submitted the tollowing written answers, marked
“@G,” after which he subscribed his name thereto, viz:

Answer to question 1. T did have my own horse shod at the
Penitentiary, two or three times, by special invitation of Winter-
bothan, on the assertion ot his, that he had the best workmen for
shoeing horses in these parts. I offered to pay him for such work,
but he retused. T thought it best to stop the work, and did so.—
He made me a present ot a hoe and scythe snath, once.

A. 2. T answer no ~o, in no wise.

A. 3. Nothing, so far as I have knowledge. The Board did '
request Dr. Inskeep to defer superintending the work until a legal
question, raised by the contractors, could be decided by the proper
authorities. Examine Mr. Henry I. McOullough as to what
Ingkeep had said respecting the west wall ; also Mr. Babcock u
same. SN

A. 4. My bills were made up from memoranda of actual ex-
penses paid out from time to time, except perhaps two or three
dollars charged for getting to and from the Board, by my own team
firiven by my hired man. When Mr. Edwards traveled with me
in visiting prisons, as my adviser, I paid his traveling expenses.
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A. 5. Properly speaking, perhaps neither gave any advice. —
Gov. Grimes said to the Board in a letter that he knew of no perdon
in the west, sunitable-to be the archifect ot our necessary prison im-
provements ; said to me personally, at an official visit, that plans
must be got,.and it was the daty of the Board to get them, as best
they could. Gov. Lowe, said personally to me, at Des Moines,
that he approved of the idea of sending a Commissioner east to
get plans, and stated that he wished me togo. Wrote to the Board
that the power to send was with the Board, and that if they saw
fit to send me, he wounld approve and would give the necessary
letters of credit.

A. 6. The variety and extent of the business and official duties
the Board found it necessary to attend to, required in their judg-
ment, meetings more frequently than once a quarter, or once a
month. The frequency or number of their meetings did not at all
increase the salaries of the Inspectors ; and the mileageot the whole
Board for the last year, as charged, amounnted to less than $150,00.

A. 7. Tanswer: 1 superintended the most of the west wall,
and gave it personal inspection. 1 was satistied then, and am still,
that it was built in a substantial and workmanlike manner. Of
that superintended by Dr. Inskeep, I cannot speak.

A. 8. The Engineer has always been required to make a survey
and cstimate at the end of the month, for work done during that
month ; and those estimates are on file at the Clerk’s office, unless
they have been recently lost.

A. 9. I have no knowledge of any such order.

A. 10. 1 have no such consciousness. Please ask my assoei-

ates.
A. 11. I think we paid about $170, if recollection serves right-

ly. This sum was allowed, and paid upon a stipnlation made with
the Board before the bids were opened, that such a sum, or what-
ever the amount should be, should be considered as a part of the,
amount of s bid, to be added to the other items ot the same, and
which was to reject his bid, it the said sum should raise his bid
above any other.

A. 12. 1 do not think I recollect; but perhaps $200, or more.
The bills on file will show.

A. 13. The west wall has not been received from the contractors,
nor is the job completed. The contorted condition of the coping
is theresult of Inskeep’s position order as Superintendent, without

the knowiedge of the Beard at all. When the estimate for the
coping was allowed, it was upon the assent, tacit at least, that it
was all right, and he was the lawfal authority on the subject.

A. 14 It has often been a question ot discussion between my-
self and the contractors and others whose is the lawtul control of
the retained percentage; but I have never known of any arrange-
ment, or understanding with the contractors, that such percentage
should be retained as a special deposit in the Bank ; nor have I
ever understood, or supposed that the use of said mioney belongs
to the Bank.. The arrangement, at the first, was made by the
Warden and Messrs. Little and Brewster, then resident Inspectors,
in my absence.

A. 15. No Sir. We have never given any orders, but have
given advice to trade at such places where he could do ths best for
the State.

A. 16. I think $25,00 or $30,00 was the cost of the original
stonc, and about one halt or two thirds of that amouut was lost to
the State.

GEORGE SHEDD.

Attest, Wy, Gray, Sec'y.

Testimony oF J. F. Epwarns, Arcurrecr AND ENGINEER OF THR
Towa PEMITENTIARY.
Mr. Edwards after having been dunly sworn by Nathan Udell, ot
the Committee, deposeth and saith as follows, to-wit:
I. 1. What wages do you receive as Architect and Engineer of
the Iowa Penitentiary ?
A. 1. Inthe year 1858 I charged the State of Iowa
for 92 days services, as Architect, at §5,00 per
ORY «ols v s vt s ne o b RETESEN VA RR IR 0 & 45 $460,00
Also, 2 months services as Engineer, @ $45,00........ 90,00
In the year 1859 I have charged the State ot ITowa with
80 days time, in May, June, July and August, as

BT R R R R g 400,00
My services as Engineer, (during the year 1859,) 53 days,

from April 1st, to 31st December ............ 265,00
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For plans and specifications, and superintending the
new shop, 24 days @ $5,00 perday, in the months’

of September, October and November, 1859. .. 120,00

For 20 days time in the months’ of December 1859 and
January 1860, with Porte Folio of plans as ex-
hibited to the Legislature @$5,00....... ..... 100,00

T e R R i S O S $1,435,00

I. 2. Who employed you ?

A. 2. Doctor George Shedd, as Agent of the Board of Inspec-
tors.

I. 3. How many men, in your opinion, can the contractors for
convict labor, in the Towa Penitentiary, employ to advantage, at
the trades, or business they are carrying on at present, in said
prison ?

A. 3. From observations which I have made in other prisons,
with direct reference to this subject, I think they could work one
hundred and ten men ; viz: by allowing sixty-six feet of floor room
to each man.

I. 4 Has there been any time, since you have been engaged
in, and about the Iowa Penitentiary, that the contractors could not
have so arranged their machinery as to work to advantage, all the
men allotted to them as per contract ?

A. 4. I think not.

By Mr. Bowen :

I. 5. Are you related, by the ties ot consanguinity, or in any

other way, to Dr. George Shedd ?

A. 5. Notto my knowledge. I never saw Dr. George Shedd
until the year 1858, when he came into my office in Boston, Mas-
sachusetts. I did not know that there was @ Doctor Shedd until
then.

JOHN F. EDWARDS.

Attest:
, WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.
Committee adjourned to meet at 2 o’clock this afternoon.
: - WILLIAM GRAY,

Secretary. |
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The following is the testimony of Mr. John H. Winterbotham,
as taken by Mr. Curtis, Chairman; said testimony having been
commenced to be taken at Fort Madison in Lee County, Iowa, on
Tuesday March 6th, a. p., 1860.

After having been duly sworn by Mr. Cartis, he, the said John
H. Winterbotham, deposeth and saith as follows, to wit:

I. 1. What is your name, age, place ot residence, and occupa-
tion ?

A. 1. My name is J. H. Winterbotham—age 46 years—resi-
dence, Fort Madison, lowa—occupation,’ contractor in the Iowa
Penitentiary.

I. 2. Are you conversant with the manner of conducting the
affairs of the Towa Penitentiary It so, how long have you been
intimate with themn, and how are the laws of the State enforced by
the officers of the Institution ?

A. 2. I have been intimately acquainted with the Institution
tor nearly six years. When I first became acquainted with it Geo.
Grigsby was Warden, James D. Eads and I. K. Swarts were the
acting Inspectors. Mr. Eads being absent most of the time, the
chiet control devolved upon Mr. Swarts. Judge Whitaker was
said to be an Inspector, but I never knew him. There were, at
that time not exceeding fifteen convicts. Mr. Grigsby, in some
respects was a fair disciplinarian, but his family were very illy cal-
culated for such a station, But taking all things into considera-
tion, the opportunities we had, the small number of convicts, &e.,
&e., Mr. Grigsby done very well. I think this was in 1854, In
1855 he was superceded by F. A. Barker, as Warden, and Charles
Brewster, J. H. Little and Dr. George Shedd, were appointed in-
spectors, I always considered Mr. Barker an honest man, and his
wite a very kind hearted and good woman. The family was too
numerous for the place. Mr. Barker, as he informed me, had no
previous experience in prison discipline, and it soon became evi-
dent to the convicts and all others who desired to take advantage
of it, and in the appointment of his under officers, he was peculiar-
ly untortunate. This, ot course resunlted in jars and discord in the
official tamily, which the unsuspecting and kind labors ot his lady
and other pious triends amongst the convicts frequently resulted
in their taking the advantage of that which was intended for their
good, and insubordination was the result. Messrs. Little and
Brewster, two of the Inspectors, were two of our most accomplish-
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ed busincss men.  Dr. George Shedd was a practicing physician
in Denmark. They held ns as Contractors, to a strict accounta.
bility for every thing. At this time the Warden was appointed
by Joint Ballot of the General Assembly. The Inspectors were
appointed by the Governor. Those deriving their authority from
different sources felt themselves independent of each other, and
this was another sonrce of discord. The Inspectors complained
that the books were not kept satisfactorily, and in our settlements
with them we generally tound their books in contusion, and the re

snlt was that we (Wintérbotham and Jones,) had to render state-
ments on both sides. upou which settlements were made ; and our
books were not kept as they ought to have been. The Inspectors
frequently complained of this, and further that their rules and reg-
ulations were not carried ont; and the dissatistaction was so great
that Messrs. Little and Brewster threatened to resign on that ac-
connt, but we persnaded them not to do so. The result of all this
was want of proper discipline in the prison, which created in nsa
fear that a gencral stampede, or fire imight ensue; and we freqnent-
ly mentioned our fears to the Warden ; and on, or abont the 14th
of August of that year, the shops were burned down by the con-
viets; and indeed the rules and regulations made by the Inspeet-
ors were not carried ont by the Warden, although so fur as 1 know,
these rules were in accordance with law, and the usages ot similar
Institutions in other states. In the winter of 1856-7 the law was
changed so that the Warden was appointed by the Inspectors, he
to appoint the Clerk, Deputy, &c., with the consent ot said Inspee-
tors, making it similar to the Ohio law. Under this law Phineas
Inskeep, was appointed Warden'; R. A. Brown, Clerk,and M. P

Griflin, Deputy Warden. From that time quite a reform was man-
ifest, and the discipline was substantially healthy and good : and
while Messrs. Little and Brewster remained Inspectors, everything
went on all right; butsome two years since the Board was changed
by their resignation, and F. O. Dorr and P. H. Babeock were ap-
pointed in their places, and Dr. Geo. Shedd continued. Doctor
Shedd acted as Superintendant of the improvements ot the prison.
From this time Dr. Shedd assumed a more prominent and leading
part in controlling the affairs of the Institution, and I think the
Board were induced through his influence to do a great many
thangs inconsistent with the best interests of the Institution. Such
for instance, as allowing extras for work never done; holding tre-
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quent and unnecessary meetings of the Board, and virtually as-
suming the control and authority properly belonging to the War-
den; and henece, from that time forward more or less discord has
prevailed, and the Institution has not prospered. At the last ses-
sion of the Legislature, the Warden was made Superintendent of
the improvement; and since that time there has been but little
else than trouble. Dr. Shedd manifesting a spirit of continuous hos-
tility to the Warden ; and while the work has been going on, one
or another of the Inspectors was most of the time there assuming
the control of the work notwithstanding the law gave it to the War-
den.

I. 3. When the work shops were burned, as mentioned before,
how and by whom were they rebuilt ?

A. 3. Winterbotham and Jones rebuilt them by order of the
Inspectors, we furnishing the material.

I. 4. Did, or did not the Inspectors advertise for bids for said
work, or was the arrangement a private one between youn and
them ?

A. 4. The Inspectors did not advertise for bids for the work.
They thought there would not be time it they advertised, to get
she shops up before cold weather.

I. 5. How large were the shops thus built, and how much did
they cost the State ?

A. 5. They were 110 feet long, beside an engine house of 38
by 22 fee*. I think 60 feet of the main shop was 28 feet wide, and
30 teet 20 feet wide, the whole two stories high ; besides a cellar
60 by 20 feet. The cellar was there before, but we had to repair
it, and raise all the building covered with tin—the material being
brick, and the entire cost to the State was $2,800 00 as near as I can
recollect.

4. 6. Was or was not all the brick, iron and other materials
not destroyed by the fire thrown in, at the time free ot charge?

A. 6. Yessir; but in the taking and cleaning of the brick
we considered them of very little value.

4. 7. It the Inspectors had advertised and let the building to
the lowest responsible bidder, might not the State have saved
money by it ?

A. 7. I don’t think it would have been built as cheap, for we
took it lower than we otherwise wonld in order to get the use of
vhe shops, and lost several hundred dollars in buildiog it.
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4. 8. Had you any authority to build that saw mill in the
yard? If go, from whom did you receive it ?

4. 8. Yessir. The Warden gave us liberty to put it there.
I mean Mr. Phineas Inskeep.

4. 9. What authority have you for filling up the yard with
8o much lumber, logs, wood, &ec., &ec.?

A. 9. I claim it under my contract with the State.

Z. 10. 'What number of hands can be worked in the shop room
already prepared, with the machinery you have now erected ?

4. 10. I should not want to work over eighty men at the pres-
ent time.

_l.? 11. With whom was the contract for convict labor made by
you

A. 11. With George Grigsby, R. W. Albright, and James D.
Eads.

Z. 12. Did you employ any person to draw up said contract
If so, who was it, and what did you pay for it ?

4. 12. Yes, I paid $5,00 to Monroe Reed for drawing it.

Z. 18. Did you or did you not say at some time after said
contract was drawn, that you never invested $50 so well in youry

‘life ; and have you not stated that Dr. Eads drew said contract #

A. 13. I never paid out but $5,00 for said contract, and that
was, as before stated, paid to Monroe Reed, and I never said any-
thing indicated in the above question to mortal man ; so far from
it Dr. Eads was the hardest man I had to deal with, and it was
through him that we had to pay five cents per day per man for
four years over the former contractors prices, and I agreed to it
in consideration of their giving me the contract for ten years in-
stead of five.

I. 14, What do you know, if anything, about Doctor George
Shedd having his horses shod, free ot charge, at the Penitentiary,
and also those of his neighbors, he securing from his said neigh-
bors the pay therefor?

A. 14. T know that he got his horses shod, and other horses
also, frequently, free of charge, but whether he ever got any pay
for it I do not kaow.

1. 15. About what amount do you think the shoeing came to,
done in that way ¢
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A. 15. Not a great deal. I could not say how much. It was
cut short too soon to amount to very much.

I. 16. Did you, or the authorities controlling the matter have
to stop it ¢

A. 16. Yes. We said we were not going to shoe all the horses
in Denmark free of charge.

1. 17. What do you know about Doctor George Shedd trav-
eling east, on his tour of observation on Prisons? Did he pay
his way, or “cousin” it? and have you any idea that it really
cost what he charged the State with, as expenses.

A. 17. 1 know he cousined it some ; and I know that I could
have gone there for a good deal less money.

I. 18. What is it worth to build one, two, or three tiers of
cells on top of those already built in the Iowa Penitentiary ?

A. 18. With brick partitions laid in cement, and with convict
labor, I think I could build them for $100 a piece.

I. 19. How are your accounts kept with the State of Towa?
and by those accounts how do you stand with the State ¢

A. 19. We have a book-keeper that keeps our books, and, ac-
cording to the books on the 1st of March, A. D. 1860, there was
a balance due the State of $244 64, and the convict labor for the
months of December, Janunary, and February, (not yet due,)
amounting to about $1,843 76. It may be well here to state that
although the above statement is substantially correct, yet since
the Inspectors and us have gotten into difficulty and litigation, we,
have not been so caretul in giving ke credits as rendered by the
clerk of the prison; and, of course, we expect that they have us
charged with more than we have allowed them, as credits on our
books. It may be well farther to state that the above statement
of the condition of the accounts between us and the State is en-
tirely independent of our claims for damages in the suit now pen-

_ding between the State and us, which claim you may find on file

in the Clerk’s office of this county, in our answer to plaintiff’s pe-
tition.

I. 20. What do you know about the alleged defalcation of
Phineas Inskeep, late Warden of the Iowa Penitentiary ¢

A. 20. From my knowledge of the affairs of the Iowa Peni-
tentiary, of Phineas Inskeep and his circumstances, conpled with
the notorious usurpations of power by the Inspectors over him, I
do not think it is possible for Mr. Inskeep to be a defaulter, as al-



62

leged. 1 have spoken to the Inspectors about Mr. Inskeep and
his accounts, and they have always allowed them to be correct,
until he was out of office, and Mr. Layton, the present Warden,
and Mr. Guthrie, the present Clerk of the Iowa Penitentiary,

came into office; and I am satistied that with a proper investiga-

tion, all will be tound right.

I 21. Does Mr. Layton, the present Warden of the Iowa
Penitentiary discharge his duties faithfully, so far as you know !

A. 21. I think he is an eflicient officer.

1. 22. What is the nature of the moral training of the con-
yicts, and what is its effect on them as it regards their obedience
to the laws of the institution and their energy in the pertormance
ot their daily labor ¢

A. 22. The chaplainey of the institution has been changed so
often that its moral influence has not been so good or ecflicient
as it wonld otherwise have been ; but could there be a permanent
chaplain at the prison, (not that I would argue the necessity of a
man whose time should be wholly taken np with the prison, alone,)
the moral training of the convicts would be beneficial in every
way. _

1. 23. For what work, never performed, did Doctor George
Shedd allow and pay for?

A. 23. For excavations estimated, called * wall space,” but
work never performed. g

Committee then adjourned to weet at eight o’clock to-morrow
morning.

Fort Madison, Iowa, t b
¢

Wednesday, March 7, 1860, 8 A. M.
Committee met pursnant to adjournment. :
All the members present, and I. C. Curtis in the chair.

The examination of John W. Winterbotham was resumed as *

follows, to wit :

1. 2¢. What did that amount to ?

A. 24. I do not know exactly, but between one and two hu‘m
dred dollars. There were, also extras allowed on the gate and

the tablet, above the gate, amounting to some two hundred and

fifty to three hundred dollars.

I. 25. Mas the work already done by McHenry & Dinsmore,f
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under the immediate snperintendence of Dr. George Shedd been
done in accordance with the published specifications?

A. 25. Nosir. The gates have not been built which were
very costly.  The *“dogs” have not been leaded into the coping of
the wall ; nor are they there at all, and the whole of the west wall
is an iuferior wall—the stone being too small and the mortar not
sufliciently limed.

I. 26, How many convicts are now employed by you?
A. 26. Detween seventy-five and eighty-five.

I. 27. In what manner do you now keep an account ot the
convict labor, both of those you employ and those you do not
employ, (aside, of course, trom the ten per cent allowed by the
contract )

A. 27. We keep an account of those we actually work, while
the State renders an account of all they think we ought to work,
and charges us with it at thirty-five cents per day, while we take
no account at present, of any but those we work, save filing away
the account rendered by the State; but we have entecn no cred-
its on our books since the commencement ‘of litigation, intending
to leave that matter to be settled hereafter,

Z. 28. What was your understanding respecting the comple-
tion ot the wall when you made your bid, and in what way, and
when were you to receive your pay.

A. 28. Our understanding from the published specifications,
which stated when the whole job should be tinished, und the pay-
ments were to be made of $16,000, then in the hands ot the In-
spectors, and the balance we were to wait for, until the Legislature
made an appropriation tor that purpose. Acting with the under-
standing we wrote to Connecticut and Ohio, to procure mouney nec-
esgary to complete the wall j after expending the $16,000, and on
the supposition that we would have to turnish the funds to finish
the walls as named in the specifications, we put in a bid several
thousand dollars higher than we should have done, had we known
that the lnspectors intended to let the work stop and wait for an
appropriation. !

Betore the specifications were published we had a conversation
with Dr. Shedd, and he said the necessities ot the prison required
the carly completion of the wall; and he wanted to know if we
did not think they would have bidders who would farnish money



64

necessary after expending the appropriation. After the specifiea-
tions were published, we again had a conversation with Dr. Shedd,
and understood from him that the contractor was to furnish the
money and finish the wall, and wait for the Legislature to make an
appropriation for the balance. After the opening of the sealed
proposals we found Messrs. Little & Brewster, two ot the Inspee
tors, were about to arrange the contract with McHenry & Dins.
more, 80 as to allow them to stop the work when the appropriation
was expended ; feeling somewhat aggrieved at such a construction
ot the specifications, we went to Denmark to see Dr. Shedd, to
call his attention to the matter, and again get his understanding

of the specifications, and he again reiterated what he betore stated -

that the parties taking the contract were to furnish money to cormn-
plete the wall after the appropriation of $16,000 was expended.
We requested him to come in and use his influence with the other
Inspectors, to have the job completed according to the specifica-
tions as he construed them. We were anxious to have the wall
completed for fear of being burnt out by discharged convicts, after
we found that the contract was drawn up with McHenry & Dins-
more, allowing the work to be discontinued after the appro!)riation
was expended, we talked ot trying to get out an injunction, but
not wishing to make trouble or difliculty with the officers we let
the matter drop. ¢

1. 29. Was your bid based on the approximate estimates con-
contained in the specifications ?

A. 29. They were.
1. 80. Do you recollect what that portion of the work amount-

ed to, which was to be finished against the 1st ot November, as
contained in the specifications, if so, state it ¢ 11t
. A, 30. In our estimate we took the whole wall together; I
don’t recollect, exactly, what that estimate was. It was on file in
the office of the prison; we intended to make clear, above.thl
cost, and interest on money borrowed, between seven and eight
thousand dollars.

1. 31. Do you recollect about what amount of money would be
required to finish the wall, after the expenditure of $16,000 ap-
propriation ¢

A. 31. We expected we would be compelled to borrow about
ten thousand dollars to complete the job.
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I. 32. Do you recollect how much your bid exceeded McHen-
ry & Dinsmore’s ¢

A. 32, [ don’t recollect, but think it was several thousand dol-
lars.

L. 33. Had there been an appropriation sufficient to complete
the wall, would you have taken the job for the same amount, or
less than that contained in the bid of McHenry & Dinsmore ?

A. 33. We certainly would, for in our caleulation ot a profit of
between seven and ecight thousand dollars, we based our esti-
mate on the cost of laying the stones by free labor, and we intend-
ed to build the wall mostly by convicts.

I. 34, 1Inany conversation had with Inspectors or either of
them, did they give you any assurance of their confidant expecta-
tion that the Legislature would make an appropriation to pay for
building of the wall, and did you entertain such an expectation
yourself ¢

A. 34. They may or may not, I don’t recollect—at least, I in-
tended the same.

I. 35. How do you reconcile the specifications which proposed
payment in Auditor’s warrants, bearing 8 per cent interest, with
the necessity ot borrowing money in the east, when yon confident-
ly expected an appropriation by the Legislature in 1858,

A. 35. We would not take a job of that magnitude, and rely
on the uncertainty ot legislation without being prepared to carry
out our contract in case legislation should fail; I think at tLat
time we took into consideration that there would be no session of
the Legislature for the next two years.

I. 36. Had you supposed that you could, in closing the con-
tract, have the right to elect or stop work when the appropriation
was exhausted until another appropriation was made, and then re-
sume, wonld youn have bid less ?

A. 36. I would, most certainly, have done go.

JOHN H. WINTERBOTHAM.,
March 8th, 1860.

Attest Wi Gravy, Sec‘y.

Mr. Guthrie submitted (through the Secretary) the following
communication, (marked “I,”) which, atter having been read, was
ordered to be placed upon file.

WM. GRAY, Sec’y.
9
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. “ I.”

Forr Manrsox, Marcn Grm, 1860.

To the Honorable, the Legislative Committee
to Investigate Afairs of Iowa Penitentiary:

GentLEMEN:—I would respectfully submit for your considera-
tion, that the compensation of $500 per annum allowed by Jaw to
the Clerk of the Jowa Penitentiary for his services, is not commen-
surate with the labors and responsibilities imposed upon him, and
therefore ask, that you recommend to the Legislature saeh increase
of Clerk’s salary as will make it equal to the amount usually paid
by banks, railroads, and individuals, employing cierks, whose du-
ties are of like character and moment.

I further submit, that I have been compelled, since entering on
the discharge of my duties, to write up the books of the Peniten-
tiary from May 1st, 1859, in order to a proper understanding of the
relations existing between the Penitentiary and persons doing bus-
iness with that institution, as also to make out and prepare the
Warden’s Biennial Report, a labor properly devolving on my pre-
decessor.

In consideration of these extra services, I would ask that the
date of increase of Clerk’s salary be stated at November 9th, 1859,
the day of my appointment. )

Very traly, your ob’t servant,
8. GUTHRIE,
Clerk of Iowa Pen’y.

Testimony of George P. Eaton, Banker, of Fort Madison, Lee
county, Iowa:

Atter being duly sworn by Nathan Udell, one of the Committee,
Mr. Eaton deposeth and saith as fellows, to-wit:

Q. 1. Have the officers of the lowa Penitentiary deposited in
the bank with which you are connected, from time to time, moneys
and State warrants ?

A. 1. They have.

Q. 2. Have the Inspectors of the Penitentiary ever drawn :

money, or warrants, out of your bank on orders signed by them,
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and not by the Warden, during the administration of Phineas Ins.
keep as Warden of said Penitentiary ?

A. 2. T believe they have. I am also under the impression
that they have deposited warrants with me for safe keeping, and
afterwards taken them out themselves, or a part of them. I am
not positive about the last part of my statement, but think they
have done so.

@ 3. Was there an agreement between you and the Inspectors
and the contractors for outer wall, and the Warden, by which you
were to retain the retained per centage for building said Wallt
When did the retained per centage accrue? What did it amonnt
to from time to time, and what does it now amount to?

A. 3. There was no written ,agreement‘, but an understanding
to that cffect. I have frequently talked with the Inspectors and
Contractors about the matter. I cannot give all the dates and dif-
ferent amounts without much trouble, as it was held as a special
deposit, and when once taken out is difficult to arrive at. The
amount now on hand is §1,732 81, °

I. 3. How much money have yon received on account of the
Penitentiary, from May 1st 1857, from all persons whomsoever ;
and how has it been paid out, and to whom, up to present date?

A. 4. T cannot say as to the amount received on account of the
Penitentiary, without a thorough examinarion of the books, as de-
posits have been made at sundry times, by sundry persons; and
have been paid out at sundry times, and the amount balanced and
examined frequently by the Clerk and Inspectors. The checks
have been cancelled and returned—and to give a statement of ‘all
would require several days time, as the account has continued for
about three years.

I. 5. What amount ot Auditor’s Warrants have you received
on account of Penitentiary, from May 1st 1857, from all persons
whomsoever, and what amount in Warrants have you paid out,
and to whom up to date ? J \ '

A. 5. I cannot say the amount of Auditor’s Warrants received,
as some of them have been left withoutany receipt, and taken ont’
by the pereon making the deposit, without going on the books.
There are more on hand now, all having been delivered.

I. 6. What amount of Warrauts (Auditors,) have youn discoun-
ted belonging to the Penitentiary fand, from 1857; what is the
amount of discount in each case, and for whom discounted ¢
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A. 6. I amunable to state the amount of warrants discounted
forthe Penitentiary, asthey were credited to the Penitentiary as
cash on our books, and charged in one account of bills recciveable,
with warrants discounted for other parties. I should think that
the amount would not exceed $6,000 00, probably less. I think
the Penitentiary “Pass Book™ will show the amount discounted.
It may not be over $4,000 00.

I. 7. In what form have the officers of the Penitentiary placed
funds in your bank : whether upon special deposit, or as credits to
accounts current, or both or in what manner ?

A. 7. On special deposit—current account, and left some war-
rants for sate keeping for very short time. .

I. 8. Have you paid any rate per cent. upon epecial deposits
made by any oflicer of the Penitentiary, in their official eapacity.

A. 8. Iave paid no interest.

I. 9. Have you paid anything, or do you iatend to pay tor the
use of the seventeen hundred dollars and upwards, found to be (.iue
from the bank to the Penitentiary, by the Commissioners appoint-
ed to examine into the affairs of the Penitentiary ?

A. 9. Have never paid any interest on the $1,732 31, nor do
I consider myself in debt to the Penitentiary for the use ot.money;
tor I have often allowed their account to be over checked for much
larger amounts. I do not intend to pay any iutere?t while .t.ha
tunds are liable to be drawn without giving (our required) notice,
and at any time as per the understanding relative to the same.

I. 10. Have you ever refused to pay checks of ‘tha Wm:den
when there was money in your hands to the credit of the Peniten-
tiary ? .

A. 10. Have never refused to pay checks of the W‘fard.en when
he had funds on deposit to his credit. Have often paid his checks
to & much larger amount. raiins'L ol

Aitest :—WiLLtam Gray, Se’y. . il

Committee adjourned at a late hour of the night to meet again

’elock. ?
to-morrow moming at 8 o’clock N caiy
Secretary.
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Forr Mabisox, Towa, }
Tuurrday, March Sth, 1860, 8 A. M.

Committee met pursnant to adjournment.

Present, Messrs. Bowen, Udell, Robinson and Sabin.

Mr. Bowen in the Chair.

Testimony of Mr. Robert McHenry, Stone Mason, &e., of Fort
Madison, Towa.

After being sworn by Mr. Udell, of the Committee, Mr. Mc
Henry deposeth and saith as follows, to wit :

I. 1. Did you have the eontract for building the present walls
of the Penitentiary ? And if so, did you superintend, or oversee
the work yourself?

A. 1. I had the contract and did oversee, or superintend the
work when not engaged in procuring materials, being there nearly
every day.

L. 2. Was it understood at the time you put in your bid that
you were to have pay for embankment about the west wall, the
same as for excavation and embankment ?

A. 2. Theamount I received was agreed upon between me and
the Inspectors betore signing the contract, and extended to only a
part of the embankment about the west wall, on account of the
difficulty of that certain portion of the embankment—that difficul-
ty being the sidling or broken nature of the ground when gaid em-
bankment had to be made.

I. 3. Was your bid open when you made the agreement for
this extra pay for embankment %

A. 3. I cannot say positively, but think my bid was opened.

I. 4. What arrangement was made between you and.the Inspec-
tors, in regard to building the south wall, and what change was
made in building the Octagon ?

A. 4. When the Inspectors adopted the plan for the Octagon,
I said to them, as I have frequently done extra jobs without extra
pay, “I think I should have the job of building the foundation for
the Octagon,” in which they concurred, and it was agreed for me to
do it at the same priceas the wall, and I have no reason to believe
that the following statement made on page 21 of Inspectors report
is not substantially correct, viz: '

“ Messrs. Mcenry & Dingmore, proposed a compromise. They
would release the State from the contract so far as the 120 feet of
wall under consideration are concerned, provided the Board would
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give them the job of laying the foundation of the octagon, and
making the necessary exeavation ; and provided further, that they
could have the job so as to do the work before the session of the
Legislature. They agree also to do the same work at the same
prices as specified in the original contract.”

This proposition was deemed very favorable to the State, and at
once determined the Board to build the foundation of the octagen.

But I will hold that if the State should not build the octagon, I
have the contract to build the south wall, should it be found nee-
essary to build such wall; but should the State make any change
orimprovements so that the south wall wonld not have to be built,
I am willing to release my contract so far as it is concerned.

Q. 5. In the change made in the gate and gateway did you
recover more pay than a fair compensation over and above your
bid for the extra work.

A. 5. 1 did not.

Q. 6. Do you consider that you built those walls in compli-
ance with your contract and the specifications ?

A. 6. I endeavored to have the walls well built; in other
words, to do a good job ; and I think it is a good job.

Q. 7. How did it happen that the inner embankment was, at
any time, higher than the outer, thus causing by pressure, the
wall to belly out ?

A. 7. It was cansed, not by embankment that I made, but by
excavation, on sleping ground, and I filled the outer embankment
as fast as possible. Part of it was made earth from former im-
provements, thus being more liable to slide.

I think the settle, or give in the wall will not materially injure

its permanency, or strength. ;
‘ R. McHENRY.
Attest—WrnLiam Gray, Seec’y. g

Mr. Charles Brewster being duly sworn, saith :

Q. 1. What was your understanding of the specifications and 3

contract in regard to the time of completion of the prison w&lfq
of the Iowa Penitentiary ?

A. 1. My understanding of it was that the work was not to N |
be completed until the Legislature made further appropriations. I f
did not think we had any right to have any more work done than

\
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the Legislature provided money for. I understood that we were
to pay monthly, as far as the work progressed.

Q. 2. Was Dr. Shedd present when the provision of the agree-
ment wherein the stipulation was made that the contractors might

elect to discontinue the work after building wall to the amount of
$16,000 ¢

A. 2. No.
CHARLES BREWSTER.

—_—

TESTIMONY OF JAMES H, REYNOLDS, DEPUTY WARDEN OF THE IOWA
PENITENTIARY.

After having been duly sworn by Jesse Bowen, of the Commit-
tee, Mr. Reynolds deposeth and saith as follows, to wit :

Q. 1. How many daysof the convicts labor has been thrown off
amongst the able bodied men, since J anuary 21st, 1859, or up to
March 1st, 1860, by the Messrs. Winterbotham & J ones, the les-
sees of convict labor in the Towa Penitentiary ?

A. 1. TFive thousand nine hundred and forty nine and one half,
(5,949%) days. (See Mr. R’s statement appended.)

Q. 2. How many days labor have been employed by them du-
ring the same time?

A. 2. Twenty-one thousand eight hundred and ninety-seven
(21,897) days. (See Mr. R’s statement appended.)

.Q. 3. How many months have you acted as Deputy Warden
without receiving pay therefor, and what is the reason you have
not been paid ¢

A. 3. For February and March, 1859. The reason assigned
was that my predecessor was paid quarterly in advance, and was
removed two months before the time expired for which he had re-
ceived pay.

& Q.'4. What was the salary of the Deputy Warden at that
ime

A. 4. Five hundred dollars a year.

Mr. Reynolds did not place his name to his testimony. It will
be found upon his appended statements, marked ¢ F1.”

WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.
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Iowa PENITENTIARY, }
March Tth, 1860.

To the Honorable Legislative Commilttee :

GENTLEMEN : —As per your request, please find below a
statement-—first, of the whole number of days charged Messrs.
Winterbotham & Jones, from January 1st, 1859, to March 1st,
1860—second, the whole number of days thrown off by Contrac-
tors, from same period.

I may state that the time has been fully agreed upon, by both
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Iowa PENITENTIARY,

March 6th, 1860. ;’

The number of days thrown off by Winterbotham & Jones,
from January 21st, 1859, to March 1st, 1860 :

parties, up to January 1st, 1859 :

Moxrus [| Days||Qrl| Monras HDAYSHQR
Jan ;y 1859 1568| 2 {Warden’s report to Oct. 1, 1859|| 2607
Feb 1420|| 2 Oct. o 38D 3
Mar “ |l 1699 1 Nov. 1« 36| 2
April 8 b 118181 .1 Dee. & 960(|
ay “ 1l 1901 3 Jan’y. 1860|| 935/ 3
June “ 11 1968|| 1 Feb’y. ¢ 516
July  « || 1851 Ly
Aung. « Il 2008l 2 5945/l 3
Sept.  « || 1818/ 2 |
Oct. 11 1807) 2 z
Nov. “ol 24081 1
Dec “ 1| 2591)| 3
Jan’y. 1860|| 2645|| 3
Feb’y. ¢ || 2849 8
27842( 2
5945|| 2
21897|| 0 .

JAS. H. REYNOLDS,
Deputy Warden:._ .

Warden’s Report, ........- 2607-% to October 1st, 1859
189-§  Oectober <
7364 November L
960 December o]
935-§  Janunary 1860
516- February .
AR o A 59454

JAS. H. REYNOLDS,
Deputy Warden,

Testimony of E. A. Layton, Warden of Iowa Penitentiary.

After being duly sworn, Mr. Layton deposoth and saith, as fol-
lows, to-wit: viz:—

By Mr. Bowen:

I. 1. Have the Contractors for Convict labor, refused to let
such convicts, as they say they have no shop room for, work for
the State under the direction of the State officers, and have the
Contractors notified the officers of the Penitentiary that they would
charge the State for such hands, and how much do they say they
will charge per day for each convict ? and did they ever speak of
charging for shop room occupied by the men thrown off con-
tract ?

A. 1. They never refused to my knowledge that the idle men
ghould work for the State outside of the zhops, but they requested
me to render to them an account of the idle men that I worked
for State purposes, and said that they should charge the State one
dollar per day for each man I so employed. 1 employed some of
the idle men last gnmmer, on various kinds of work, but kept no
distinct account of the same, but putit down in the others as
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“ chores.” They refused to let me lease any of them out to other
parties. They have told me that they shall charge the State for
the room in the shops occupied by the idle men.
I. 2. Is there great danger of the Penitentiary buildings being
burnt up, from the manner in which the Contractors keep the
yard of the Penitentiary filled up with lnmber and other materials
of a combustible charaeter ¢
A. 2. I answer all these interrogatories in the aflirmative.
I. 3. Do you know how much it costs the State to keep the
convicts per day ? if so, state it.
A. 3. Ithink it costs the State about forty cents per day for each
convict of the present number.
Z. 4. Is there shop room enough to work to advantage all, or
more of .the convicts now in the Penitentiary, and is the shop
room encumbered unnecessarily with raw material and manufae-
tured articles ? ;
A. 4. 1 think there is. I think they take up unnecessary
room in the shops, in the storage of the material and manufactur.
ed articles.
Z. 5. Could the convict labor be employed advantageously to
the State, in building up the Penitentiary and at other branches
of business ?
A. 5. 1am of the opinion that a part of the convicts could be
so employed by the State toadvantage, yet it would of course re-
quire more gunards.
/. 6. What amount of supplies have you now on hand for the
support of the convicts for the  current year, comméncing on the
18t day of October, 1859 ? :

A. 6. Of Provision, Clothing and Bedding, about four thon-
sand ($4,000,00) dollars. :

E. ACLAYTON.
Attest—War. GraY, Sec'y.

Committee then adjourned till 2 o’clock this afternoon.
WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.

—_—

Fort Madison, Iowa,
Thursday, March 8, 1860, 2 o’clock P. M. }

Committee met pursnant to adjournment.
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All the members present.

; tis in the Chair. : e
il? Igulf[;sﬁl:nry was re-called and testified as follows, to-wit:

7. 1. Did you, in bidding for building the prison wall;, l:::fe'
stand from the specifications, that you were to completoza't fe e
wall, receiving $16,000,00 toward it, as earned, agd w::u : o
ture appropriation for the balance -that would be due y fo sasce

A. 1. When I made out my bid, I understood tllmt 0
receive my pay every month, and to stop the; yal ‘;{ tixz waIJ;
stopped payments. I was to rzume the completion o
Wh; n2t he)fiﬁ?&ffg;z: ::::: to such a conclusi.on, when the spec-
ﬁca;:iox'ls, upon which your bid was founded, wd that y(:;h::::
to receive your pay monthly, until the appropna.tlons'was
od. and then take notes at 8 per cent for the bals.a.x.xce . g

’A. 9. 1 came to the conclusions, by the specifications, as
del';t?d It)l;?ln;'.ou in your bid, put the condition that you were to
sto;; work when ;.he appropriation of $16,000,00 was exhansted ?

id not. :

111.. 4:3 .{I)i?il::u understand it necessary to put in the provwgo c:
being permitted to stop work w_hen .they stopped payment, ‘
your understa.ndinglo(t;i ;he atwmﬁcanonsl

ir. not. :

lll.. 5%' gg ;l;u put in your bid, at a %ﬁgher rate, expcctmg to
have to complete the whole wall and wait for the balance above
$16,000,00 till another appropriation was made ?

did not.
' }1 65.‘ liid you state, in your bid, what time the work was to
be completed ?

. No sir.
f. ’: Who first informed you that there would be a large out-

lay over and above $16,000,00, if t?le w.nll contract was completed
by the time mentioned in the specifications ¢

—

Testimony of J. P. Harper, Civil Engineer, of Ft. Madison, Lee

ty, Towa: :
wlxlfti’r having been duly sworn by Nathan Udell, of the Commit-

tee, Mr. Harper deposeth and saith, to-wit:



one of the Inspectors. The work was in the foundation. The

that part of the wall I saw to bind it; and further than this I know
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@. 1. What do you know of the manner in which the outer
walls of the prison were put up? Were they put up in a good,
workmanlike manner?

A. 1. T believe, so far as the masonry is concerned, that it is
gufficiently strong. The west wall was carried up some twenty or
thirty feet, to the present surface of the yard, with the embank-
ment on the inside much higher than that on the outside, which, I
believe, is the cause of the present contorted condition of the wall.
It certainly impairs its permanency. I believe there was a defi-
ciency of lime in the mortar. T have observed the progress of the
building ot the wall very frequently, and with the exception of the
two points mentioned before, I believe it was built within the in-
tentions of the specifications. I am a Civil Engineer, and have
had over fifteen years’ experience in erecting heavy masonry.

Did not procure the signature of Mr. J. P. Harper.

WILLIAM GRAY,
Secretary.

Testimony of Patrick Gilligan, Stone Mason, of Fort Madison,
Lee county, Iowa: )

After having been duly sworn by Jesse Bowen, of Committee,
Patrick Gilligan deposeth and saith as follows, to-wit:

@. 1 What is your name?

A. 1. Patrick Gilligan.

@. 2. Are you a stone mason ?

A. 2. Iam.

@. 3. Are you acquainted with the manner in which the outer
wall ot the Towa Penitentiary was put up?

A. 3. Iam somewhat acquainted with the manner in which it
was put up. ‘ ' :

@. 4. 'Was the wall put up in a good and workmanlike man-
ner? If not, how was it put up?

A. 4. I never was there but once, and that was when the west
wall was put up. I found some fault with it, and complained to

stone was thrown in loosely, and there was not sufficient mortar in

not. S dd A

'
By
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Q. 5. At what time was this?
A. 5. This was in the summer of 1858.

Did not procure Mr. Gilligan’s signature.
i E WM. GRAY, Sec’y.

Testimony of J, G. Kennedy, of Fort Madison, Towa: .

After being duly sworn by Nathan Udell, of .the Committee, J.
G. Kennedy deposeth and saith as follows, to-wit:

Q. 1. What do yon know ot the manner in which the outer
wall of the Towa Penitentiary was put up? Whether it was done
in a workmanlike manner, and all you know about it.

A. 1. I was there at one time, and went up on top of the wall.',
atter looking at it for some time, 1 came to the conclusion that it
was not done in a workmanlike manner. I am no stone mason,
but think I understand how stone work should be done. There
was trom eight to fourteen inches built up on each side of the wall
with mortar, and between those two outer walls the rocks were
thrown in to fill np the space, without mortar. While I was there
I witnessed this for ten or fitteen minutes. I allude to the West
wall.

Did not procure Mr. Kennedy’s signature.

WM. GRAY, Sec’y.

Testimony of Erancis O. Dorr, of Fort Madison, in Lee county,
Iowa:

Mr. Dorr, after being duly sworn by Mr. Ourtis, Chairman of
Committee, deposeth and saith as follows, to-wit :

Q. 1. Do the Contractors for convict labor, occupy the Peni-
tentiary grounds with combustible materials, so as to endanger the
public property, the lives ot the officers and convicts, and to endan-
ger the escape ot the convicts ?

A. 1. I think they do. A large amount of raw material is
allowed to accumulate in the yard—I think larger than is necessa-
ry te carry on their business; though I do not profess to be prac-
tically acquainted with mechanical business,

Q. 2. Is there a steam saw mill erected within the grounds of
the Iowa Penitentiary ?
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A. 2. There is.

Q. 3. Does that obstruct the view of the Guard, in guarding
the prison? And does it endanger the public buildings from fire,
and favor the escape ot the convicts in case of a stampede?

A. 3. My answer to each, and all of your last interrogatories
is in the aflirmative.

1. 4. By whose authority, or permission, was gaid Steam Saw
Mill, erected within the Penitentiary yard ?

A. 4. I do not know that it was erected upon any authority.—
I know it was not erected by permissien or authority of the prison
inspectors.

1. 5. By what other acts, if any, on the part of the contractors
for convict labor, is prison discipline endangered — public property
liable to be consumed, and the escape ot convicts endangered, in
your opinion #

A. 5. 1 think the prison discipline is endangered, principallys
by their refusing to employ all the men allotted to them.

I. 6. 1Is there sufficient shop room, in your opinion, for the em-
ployment of all the men in the prison, allotted to them according
to contract ?

. A. 6. As a matter of opinion, there is an abundance of room.

I. 7. Do you know hew many convicts, able bodied, there are
in the Iowa Penitentiary ?

A. 7. There are about one hundred and ten, or one hundred and
fifteen able bodied convicts now in the Penitentiary.

I. 8. How many do the contractors employ at this time?

A. 8. On an average, about sixty to seventy.

L 9. Have the contractors retused to pay for convict labor when

due and demanded by the Inspectors and Warden ¢

A. 9. Thave been informed by the Clerk that a demand has
been made upon them, for pay, and they have refused to comply.

I. 10. THow often have the Inspectors examined the books, or
what is their practice of examining the manner of keeping the

books and accounts of the Penitentiary ?

A. 10. Last year we entered into a monthly settlement with the

Warden — reqnired a voucher for every receipt and payment. On

those occasions we frequently referred to the books. We contin-
ued that course until the meeting ot the examining commission.—

Last summer they, and their two clerks required possession of the

'

books fer several months which compelled us to discontinue the
examining of them for sometime, since which the clerk has
opened a new set of books, and his time has been occupied in
straightening up the books and making up the annual Reports, &e. ;
consequently we have not had a thorough auditing for sometime.

L 11. Were the Inspectors satisfied, from such examination,
with the manner of keeping the books and accounts of the lowa
Penitentiary ?

A. 11. We were not fully satisfied mt.h the manner in which
Mr. Brown kept the booksof the Penitentiary. With the present
clerk’s (Mr. Guthrie’s) manner of keeping the books ot the Peni-
tentiary, we are satisfied.

I. 12. What efforts were made by the Inspectors to correct the
tr:mnn'er of keeping the books and accounts of the Iowa Peniten-

ary

A. 12. The initiative move must be made by the Warden for
the clerks removal from office. My intention, and also that of the
Inspectors, (so I think,) was to take measures to have Mr. Brown
removed. This course was poatponed for the reason that we sup-
posed that Governor LOWe, in accordance with law, would appoint
an examining commission, which he did do last year. The clerk
is also commissary, and acquainted with many of the details of the
Institution which no one else could so satisfactorily explain, there-
fore we thought best to retain him until atter that examination,
and did so after the completion of that examination ; and as soon
as Mr. Guthrie was removed from his duaty as the commission clerk,
the Warden, with our approbation, nominated him as clerk, and
we approved the same.

. 13. When was Mr. Brown appointed clerk of the Iowa Pen-
itentiary ?

A. 13. I think he was appointed in the month May, 1857.

L. 14. When did the Governor issue his commission for the ap-
pointment of the examining commissioners ?

A. 14. I think it was en.rly in the summer of 1859. The GOv
ernor was several months in forming that commission, as several
gentlemen declined serving, and others had to be appointed.

I. 15. What were the reasons which induced the Governor to
appoint that commission, or were there any charges made to him,
against the Inspectors, or Warden, which led hinrto make said ap-
pointment ?

R R
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A. 15. " -
on thelg'ov{ .Can l,]‘m; oy what the reasons were, which operated up-
T ,.u.'d tun(;r s mind to cause him to make the appointment.—
e :; )ectoc; charges, I wonld say that copies from the records of
S rlusg,]y 8, were handled to the Governor ; some of which (copies)
pre sly incorrect, whether by desi i
b s e o m, y gn, or accident [ cannot say.
re made by the order : i
g gty ¥ of John H. Winterbotham,
L. -18. ) i { i
16. After hearing that such copies were placed before the

Governor, what cour i
Gerammar, ge did the Inspectors pursue in regard to

ga;&e. t}](i.m foclaped np{)r; (:‘rlovemor Lowe, and desired to know who
; 1im, and I also requested him to |
e, the Governor, told AT
, me that Mr. Howell, editor
ot J - , editor of the * Gate
g:[z;]tsg:‘:hci ctll:im to ln{n, and very cheerfully handed me the doc-
. re now in my possession. I called M

and requested him to tell me how | o gaphs oo

- 1e came into the possession of

;hem? I]:e refused me the desired information. I cal:ne home t(:)o
o'rt Madison, and we, the board ot Inspectors, set on foot an en-
quiry and asked the Warden and subordinate oflicérs, on oath
)

*how false copies of the records could have been obtained and sent

to the Governor, but obtained no light whatever on the subject,
but dfatected that the hand writing was very similar to that of a
clerk in a store, over which the Messrs. Winterbotham and Jones
% la.n office. I calle(.l upon the clerk in question, and said to him:
2 wl:n, Sfor _w/wzn .dui youw make these copies, (presenting them to
im,) he replied, ¢ for Mr. Winterbotham,” who (Mr. Winterboth-

am,) afterwards acknowledged that he had caused these copies to be
nu.zd.e ﬁrom .ot/wr copies. I:.ie refused to tell how he obtained the
original copies. The errors in those copies consisted in wrong dates
which charged upon the present Board of Inspectors, of which I
am a member, the acts of a former board. , B

Q. .17 . What was the object ot the Inspectors in instituting th
examination to ascertain who made those copies? '
m:.inl’:; d‘;Ve ;hongh:l a gross wrong had been done by some per-

> nding forth false records, and we wished t tal
e o me—— ed to ascertain who

Q. 18. What recommendation to the Governor did you make
up;n s;s;ert;.mmg who made those copies?

. 18, I think we made no recomm i P

s g’ e commendation whatever upon

~ the conclusion, as stated on paze 8 of their report t

s1

Q. 19. Did the papers, themselves, placed before the Governor,
request any interposition on Lis part, to jnstitute an im;esti'gation {
; bhom woll SR O

A. 19. They did not. ; : ’
¢. 20. Did the Inspectors request the appointment of Commis-

cioners to investigate the affairs of the Penitentiary? .

4. 20. They did not; but told the Governor, afterhe announc-
ed his intention of so doing, that we all rejoiced at the eame. -

. 21. Did this investigation by the Inspectors cost the Sthte
anything? 1t sq, how wmuch ¥ - 8. oX . 4 '

A, 21. 1 am not aware that it did. ‘

Q. 22. Have duplicate receipts been taken for all expenditures
made on account ot the Penitentiary, and has a copy of the same
been sent to the Auditor of State monthly ? e, 8 €z

A. 92. That has been the general practice. ' :

Q. 23. Was there a cettlement made with Phineas Tuskeep
at the end of his term! and it so, what was that settlement,
and is there any record of the same ! SR L

A. 23. There was a settlentent made upon vouchers ' and ab-
atracts from the books presented by him-=—the result at which we
arrived was, that there was a balance due Phineas  Inskeep,
amounting to $811.07 from the State, which was' paid, in eéash,
$421, and the balance by a Penitentiary note, as appears by 'the
rocord, I cannot tell how the Investigating Committee came to

hat we found

3

due him $179.57. _
Q. 24, Do you know how much land belongs to the Peni-

tectiary, and what is the evidence of the title  of the State of

lowa to the same.
A, 24. I do not know the number of acres, nor have T inves-

tigated the title, except the portion bought of Mr. Elsroad,—
that, I think is good. A portion of the ground now oceupied,
includes a street laid out or left open in the original plat, made
according to act ot Congress, declaring that all such streets
should forever remain open for public use or revert to the
United States. The Board of Tuspectors appeared betore the
city Couneil ‘and petitioned them to vacate the portion of “Ori-
ental Street,” now 8o ocenpied. The Conncil ordered the same
‘to be vacated, subject to the ' obligation on the part of the
State to furnish them ground for a new street cast ot the ecast
wall of the Penitentiary, which obligation has not been com-

plied with.
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Q. 25. How mnch did the new shop cost ?

A. 25. I think it cost £6,000.

Q. 26. How was the contract let?

A. 26. To the most favorable bidder, and, 1 think, the
lowest. '

Q. 27. To whom was the contract given?

A. 27. To Marr Green and others.

Q. 28. How and when was the work paid for?

A. 28, In Penitentiary notes given from time to time as
the work progressed.

Q. 29. When was the Hospital bailt?

A. 29. T think about eighteen months ago.

Q. 80. How mauch did it cost ?

A. 30. 1 cannot tell.

Q. 31. How was the contract let out ?

A. 31. It was contracted to Steiner & Brother at what we
thought was a low rate, the State farnishing the materials.

Q. 82, How paid for?

A. 32, DPartly in cash and partly in notes.

Q. 83. 'What secarity has the State for the faithfal perform-
ance of the contract between the State and the lcssecs ot the
Prison ¢

A. 33. None.

Q. 3. What sccurity has the State for the faithful perform.
ance of Messrs. McHenry & Dinsmore’s contract for the ercction
of the stone walls arourd the Penitentiary.

A. 34. Bond, with Peter Miller & Son as secnrity.

FRANCIS O. DORR.

Attest—Wirniam Gray, Sec'y.

Committee adjourned to meet again at “carly lighting ot the
lamps” this evening.

WILLIAM GRAY, Se'y.

TFort Madison, Towa, 1
. Thursday, March Sth, 1860, 7 o’clock P. M. {
Committee met as usnal. All the members present.  Mr. Car-
tis in the chair, . '
Mr. John Gavin, stone mason, of Fort Madison, in Lee County,
after having been daly sworn by Nathan Udell, of Committee, de-
poseth and saith, as follows, to wit : ;

Are you a stone mason ?

I am. :
Did you work on the walls of the Iowa Penitentiary ?
I worked about one and one half mouths on the east
wall ot the lowa Penitentiary, and about two weeks on the west
wall of the same.

Q. 3. Do yeou think those walls were built in a good work-
manlike manner, as such walls should be?

A. 3. 1 think they were not. I do not think they were what
would be called, by worken, done in good salid masonry ; that is,
in some parts of the work they were not, and in some parts they
were.

Q. 4. Was the stone laid in good quick lime mortar ?

A 4. The stone was laid in quick lime mortar, but I do not
think there was lime enough put in. :

PO>O
O O ol

JOIIN GAVIN.
Attest—WinLiax Gray, Sec'y.

P. II. Babeock sworn.

Are yon a practical cooper, and do yon know that Winter-
botham & Jones use the new brick shop at the Penitentiary as a
cooper shop ? if so, how many men can, to advantage work in
eaid shop?

A. 1. Iam acooper by trade; I have worked at it for ten
vears. Winterbotham & Jones use the lower story as a cooper
shop. T am very certain that I could manage the shop so as to
work 55 or 60 men, The shop is 40 feet by 105. I think that is
the size of it.

Q. 2, Do you know the amount of shop room in the Peniten-
tiary yard, and the number ot men it would accommodate to
work therein to advantage at such work as is carried on by Win-
terbotham & Jonest

A. 2. I know trom what hands they worked formerly, there is
room enough to work over two hundred men. ’

P. II. BABCOCK,

Attest—WirLian Gray, See'y.

Committee adjourned sine die, at 3 o'clock A. M. of Friday,
Oth March, A, D. 1860. .
WM. GRAY, Sec’y.
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ERRATXHA.

On page 2 aud in sec. 4, read “among” for “amongst.?
On page 5 5 and on the 13th line be]ow the words “its List oiy ¢
read “one hundréd and fifty three thousand seven linndred and
nmeteeu dollars and twenty one cents (8153,719,21,) instead of
one hundred and five thonsand seven hundred and nincteen dol-
jars and twenty-ope cents (105,719,21.7)
~ On page 7and in'sccond line from bottom, add the word f how
On page 8, remove “comma® in 4th line from top, and from be.
fwix the words %nof™® ardss However,” and place said ‘“‘comma’
after the word ‘““deduced ” in same line. R
... On, the last line of page 8, introduce “&e., (el atter the word »
“bmlera,” and a “cor’mna" bethxt the word * boiler” aml thvwrd ;
“engine” precedin Mg FRoan? ou diridy
On page 9, at 2 th ]me from top, introduce bctwm. the words
“gurrender’” and “upon’ the words “of the eontract:!”?’ .1 211/
Transpose the first and second “whole sentence’ on page 10.
On page 11, and on 6th line from top, introduce the'words “or
penal? betwixt the words “reformatory” and “institation?® =
On page. 12, and at 1Jth hne from top, read “tr.rm” ihstead of :
Stime,” e
On page 13 and in ﬂrst line from top, read “wr‘w 7 ‘inatéad of :
“igrievous.” o Dl
On page 13, and gt IOth,lmg from tqp mtroducc the wm'd “penal”
. au.d “g comma”’ bethxt the words ¢ 1” axid “reformatory.” 0
On page 14, and, in 3d line from bottom, rémiove “colon” and in-
troduce a dash, thus “: ” betwiixt’ tﬁe"words "hundred n 'aﬁd
“bat” b
Qq“plge 15,,lnd oq llth lme ﬁom top, read L lence" for
~.'" force.” . H ko
On page 15 and on 14th Iine from top, otmt thc word‘-“aﬂj‘ :

Yo

On pagedE ) in 23& hne f;om top read % “bbre” for “tlftse. ;

Y 11ex ,[|

i
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